
CABINET
AGENDA

Wednesday, 5 February 2020

The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, 
NN1 1DE.

6:00 pm

Members of the Cabinet:

Councillor: Jonathan Nunn (Leader of the Council)

Councillor: Phil Larratt (Deputy Leader)

Councillors: Mike Hallam, Tim Hadland, Stephen Hibbert, Brandon Eldred, Anna King 
and James Hill. 

Chief Executive George Candler

If you have any enquiries about this agenda please contact 
democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk or 01604 837722 

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk


PORTFOLIOS OF CABINET MEMBERS

CABINET MEMBER TITLE

Councillor J Nunn Leader

Councillor P Larratt Deputy Leader
 

Councillor M Hallam Environment

Councillor B Eldred Finance

Councillor T Hadland Regeneration and Enterprise 

Councillor S Hibbert Housing and Wellbeing

Councillor A King Community Engagement and Safety

Councillor J Hill Planning

SPEAKING AT CABINET MEETINGS
Persons (other than Members) wishing to address Cabinet must register their intention to do so by 12 noon on the day of 
the meeting and may speak on any item on that meeting’s agenda.

Registration can be by:

Telephone: (01604) 837722
(Fax 01604 837057)

In writing: Democratic and Member Services Manager
The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE
For the attention of the Democratic Services Officer

By e-mail to democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk

Only thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses, so that if speakers each take three minutes no more than ten 
speakers will be heard.  Each speaker will be allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes at each meeting.  Speakers 
will normally be heard in the order in which they registered to speak.  However, the Chair of Cabinet may decide to depart 
from that order in the interest of hearing a greater diversity of views on an item, or hearing views on a greater number of 
items.  The Chair of Cabinet may also decide to allow a greater number of addresses and a greater time slot subject still to 
the maximum three minutes per address for such addresses for items of special public interest.

Members who wish to address Cabinet shall notify the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting and may speak on 
any item on that meeting’s agenda.  A maximum of thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses by Members unless 
the Chair exercises discretion to allow longer.  The time these addresses take will not count towards the thirty minute period 
referred to above so as to prejudice any other persons who have registered their wish to speak.

KEY DECISIONS
  denotes the issue is a ‘Key’ decision: 

 Any decision in relation to the Executive function* which results in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the 
making of saving which are significant having regard to the Council’s budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates. For these purpose the minimum financial threshold will be £250,000;  

 Where decisions are not likely to involve significant expenditure or savings but nevertheless are likely to be significant 
in terms of their effects on communities in two or more wards or electoral divisions; and

 For the purpose of interpretation a decision, which is ancillary or incidental to a Key decision, which had been 
previously taken by or on behalf of the Council shall not of itself be further deemed to be significant for the purpose of 
the definition.

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk


NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL
CABINET

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held:
in The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE.

on Wednesday, 5 February 2020
at 6:00 pm.

George Candler
Chief Executive 

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES  

2. MINUTES  

3. INTENTION TO HOLD PART OF THE MEETING IN PRIVATE IF NECESSARY  

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES  

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES  

7. FOUR WATERSIDE MASTERPLAN 2020  

 (Copy herwith)

8. REVIEW OF POLICIES SET OUT IN THE WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE 
JOINT CORE STRATEGY  

(Copy herewith) 

9. REVISION OF THE MEMORANDUM OF CO-OPERATION FOR THE WEST 
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE JOINT PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD  

(Copy herewith)
 

10. RECTORY FARM LAND DISPOSAL  

 (Copy herewith) 

11. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS  
THE CHAIR TO MOVE:
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER OF THE 
MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO 
THEM OF SUCH CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST 
SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH 
OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.” 





1
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 22 January 2020

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

Wednesday, 22 January 2020

PRESENT: Councillor Nunn (Chair); Councillor Larratt (Deputy Chair); Councillors 
Eldred, Hadland, Hallam, J Hill, Hibbert and King

APOLOGIES:  

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from the Borough Secretary. 

2. MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 23 December 2019 were agreed and signed by the 
Leader. 

3. INTENTION TO HOLD PART OF THE MEETING IN PRIVATE IF NECESSARY
There was no intention to hold any part of the meeting in private. 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES
There were none. 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The Leader declared an interest in Item 9 (Community Asset Transfer of Cherry Orchard) as 
the ward Councillor. 

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES
There were no issues arising from Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

7. CITYFIBRE ROLLOUT
Councillor Hadland as the relevant Cabinet Member outlined the report, which agreed the 
delivery of a new fibre network within Northampton in conjunction with CityFibre, together 
with related property matters and a master wayleave agreement resourced by the scheme.

The Leader stated that he was grateful to all officers who had worked with CityFibre to 
deliver the project.  Councillor Larratt was pleased to note that the development of the Data 
Centre at Stone Circle Road allowed continued use of the football pitches by Thorplands 81.  
Councillor Hill stated that CityFibre had been commended at a Residents’ Association 
meeting for their positive engagement with the public.

RESOLVED:

2.1 Cabinet approved and agreed the delivery of a new fibre network by CityFibre as set 
out below in the report within the Borough and approved and agreed the 
arrangements that the Council are putting in place to facilitate this scheme of 
investment in Northampton   

2.2  Cabinet delegated to the Economic Growth and Regeneration Manager in 
consultation with the Lead Member for Regeneration and Planning the Chief Finance 
Officer and Borough Secretary the authority to enter  into the following; - a lease with 

1

Agenda Item 2



2
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 22 January 2020

CityFibre for land at Stone Circle Road for a Data Centre Unit supported by a 
wayleave with CityFibre Metro  Networks Limited and a substation lease with 
Western Power Distribution Limited to supply electricity to the Data Centre Unit, all of 
which form part of the scheme of investment in Northampton as set within this report  

2.3  Cabinet delegated to the Economic Growth and Regeneration Manager the authority 
to negotiate and enter a Master Wayleave Agreement and associated resourcing 
Service Agreement with CityFibre on appropriate terms to support the scheme of 
investment in Northampton.  

2.4  Cabinet delegated to the Economic Growth and Regeneration Manager the authority 
to agree a process for approving wayleave applications which will form part of the 
Master Wayleave Agreement and as noted above forms part of this Scheme of 
investment.  The applications will be submitted in stages and the routes considered 
pursuant to this process. 

 

8. TRANSFER OF SOUTHBRIDGE LAND TO THE COUNCIL
Councillor Hadland as the relevant Cabinet Member outlined the report which allowed the 
transfer of a parcel of land to the Council, with subsequent development for affordable 
housing.  A draft scheme for the affordable housing had already been drawn up by 
Northampton Partnership Homes.

RESOLVED:

2.1 Cabinet:

(a) Agreed to the transfer of the parcel of land in Southbridge known as Area E5 
(edged in red on the plan in Appendix A, attached to this report) to the Council in 
accordance with the s106 agreement dated 9 August 2002;

(b) Delegated authority to the Economic Growth and Regeneration Manager, in 
consultation with the Borough Secretary, Chief Finance Officer and Cabinet 
Member for Regeneration and Enterprise, to complete the transfer to enable the 
site to be developed for affordable housing.

(c) Agreed to receive a further report in May 2020 that includes details of the 
affordable housing that is to be built on Area E5 and how the housing 
development is to be funded. 

 

9. COMMUNITY ASSET TRANSFER OF CHERRY ORCHARD
Councillor Hadland as the relevant Cabinet Member outlined the report proposing the 
transfer of Cherry Orchard Public Open Space to Hardingstone Parish Council.  This was a 
positive development whereby a local facility for local people would now be controlled by 
them, and thanks were expressed to officers for facilitating this.  

RESOLVED:

2.1 Cabinet delegated authority to the Economic Growth and Regeneration Manager, in 
consultation with the Borough Secretary, Chief Finance Officer and Cabinet Member 
for Regeneration and Enterprise to complete the transfer of Cherry Orchard to 
Hardingstone Parish Council on the following terms:-

2



3
Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 22 January 2020

 That there is a covenant placed on the land to ensure it continues to be used as 
public open space as the main permitted use for recreational use. 

 Following transfer Northampton Borough Council will continue to cut the grass 
through its contracted suppliers until 3 June 2028.  

 The Parish Council will assume responsibility for grass cutting from 4th June 2028.
 The Parish Council will take on all other responsibilities for the land at completion of 

the community asset transfer.
 Northampton Borough Council to retain a right of pre-emption should the Parish no 

longer require the land for the permitted use.
 The transfer will be subject to advertisement to adhere to statutory requirements to 

allow members of the public opportunity to comment.  These comments will be 
reviewed by the Economic Growth and Regeneration Manager, in consultation with 
the Borough Secretary, and the Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Enterprise 
and should there be no objections to the proposed disposal the matter will complete.  
If there are any objections received to the proposed disposal then the matter will be 
brought back to Cabinet for consideration.

 

10. FINANCE MONITORING TO NOVEMBER 2019
Councillor Eldred as the relevant Cabinet Member outlined the report forecasting an 
overspend of £887k.  There had been serious issues with temporary accommodation, but it 
was hoped that this situation would improve over the next year.  Money was available in 
reserves if needed.

Councillor Larratt referred to Item 3.5.1 on page 24 and questioned why £1.165m was being 
invested in the North West Relief Road when the scheme did not have full agreement.  He 
considered that building on the track-bed of a railway line which was being considered for 
re-opening was a waste of taxpayers’ money.  The Leader pointed out that there was a need 
to keep up the supply of housing.  However, the relief from the road would be temporary and 
delivery of the Northern Orbital Road was the long-term objective.  In the short-term, 
meetings were being held with Northamptonshire County Council and a formal response to 
the questions of the roundabout and traffic was being sought.

Councillor Larratt noted that at the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning and Infrastructure 
Board meeting there had been confusion over the vision for the Northern Orbital Road.  He 
asked that future consideration be given to defining this.  The Head of Planning stated that 
he was meeting with the officer drafting the Northamptonshire Strategic Infrastructure Plan 
next week, and would make the Council’s aspirations clear.

RESOLVED:

2.1 That Cabinet noted the contents of the report and noted that future reports will set 
out the actions being taken by Corporate Management Board (CMB) to address 
issues arising.

2.2 That Cabinet noted the amendments to the general fund capital programme as 
set out at paragraph 3.5.1.

2.3 That Cabinet approved a £2.4m virement within the HRA capital programme as 
set out at paragraph 3.6.2.

 

The meeting concluded at 6:15 pm

3



This page is intentionally left blank



CABINET REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Service Area:

Accountable Cabinet Member: 

Ward(s)

5th February 2020 

NO

YES

YES

Economy, Assets and Culture 

Cllr Tim Hadland 

Castle Ward

1. Purpose

1.1. To update Cabinet on progress made on the Four Waterside Site since the 
Development Agreement with Kier was terminated in April 2019. 

1.2. To approve the Four Waterside Masterplan (2020), proposal (the feasibility 
study) 

2. Recommendations

It is recommended that:

2.1 Cabinet approves the first stage of the Four Waterside Masterplan proposal 
(the feasibility study) which sets the principles and the approach that will be 
taken to deliver a mixed-use development site on a key site located on the 
edge of Northampton Town Centre.

2.2  Cabinet notes the need for a development appraisal, which when complete will 
be referred back to Cabinet for consideration along with delivery advice setting 
out the most appropriate procurement strategy to secure a development 
partner or partners for the site.

Report Title Four Waterside Masterplan 

Appendices

1

5

Agenda Item 7



3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1 Four Waterside Site  is an approximately 20,000 sqm development site 
located on the edge of Northampton Town Centre, adjacent to the River Nene 
and St Peter’s Way. The site is located less than 3 minutes’ walk away from 
the Northampton Train Station and 5 minutes’ walk to the town centre. The 
site location is shown on pages 4 and 5 of the first stage of the feasibility study 
Appendix 1.

3.1.2 The Four Waterside Site forms part of the Northampton Waterside Enterprise 
Zone (NWEZ), which was awarded Enterprise Zone status by the Government 
in October 2011. The NWEZ is the largest Enterprise Zone in England 
compromising 120 hectares of land across over 25 sites. 

3.1.3 Four Waterside Site was one of the projects included in the original NWES 
prospectus and is still considered a strategically important development site 
for Northampton, being one of seven projects identified within the latest 
Enterprise Zone delivery plan. 

3.1.4 West Northamptonshire Development Corporation (WNDC) entered into a 
contract with Kier to develop the site in 2014.  This agreement was novated to 
the Council following the demise of WNDC. The rights and obligations of 
WNDC under this agreement were transferred to the Council following the 
operational closure of WNDC.

3.1.5 The Council held discussions with Keir over the development of the Four 
Waterside Site in the subsequent years, with the parties not able to agree on a 
plan for how to bring development on the site forward. 

3.1.6 In the years since the Development Agreement was entered into the market 
for commercial developments changed and demand for office developments 
significantly reduced.

3.1.7 Keir presented a variation to the original agreed scheme that was due to 
deliver a range of landmark offices, this amended scheme significantly 
reduced the quality of the development by reducing the level of office 
accommodation and introducing retail.

3.1.8 The Council terminated the Development Agreement with Kier in April 2019.

3.1.9 With the Four Waterside Site having been cleared and having had a level of 
remediation carried out across the Four Waterside Site it is ready for 
development. The whole site is in the ownership of the Council.

3.1.10 The Council appointed Faulkner Brown Architects in June 2019 to undertake a 
new masterplan for the site. Avison Young were appointed at the same time to 
provide commercial support including undertaking soft market testing and to 
engage environmental consultants to ensure that the proposed development 
would be attractive to the market and was deliverable.

6



3.1.11 There has and continues to be high level commercial interest in Four 
Waterside Site. The Council is aware of an office operator that is willing to 
invest, once an office development is brought forward. Equally a number of 
hotel operators have shown interest in the Four Waterside Site but have failed 
to invest due to the marginal nature of the finances. 

Development of the Masterplan

3.1.12 The Masterplan proposal considers a wide variety of factors in determining the 
optimal layout and mix of uses that have been included in the feasibility study. 
Factors including the site constraints, opportunities, characteristics, 
environmental considerations and its history has influenced its development. 

Image 1.

3.1.13 Faulkner Browne consider that the two corner plots to the east and west have 
the potential to become ‘commercial anchors’. The first engages with the train 
station to the north west corner of the Four Waterside Site and the second 
links to a primary road junction to the north east corner of the Four Waterside 
Site.

3.1.14 The south west boundary frames the river and overlooks a large urban park 
which forms a green island in between the north and south banks of the river, 
there is an opportunity for the proposed scheme to link to the Foot Meadow 
both visually and physically to promote links to nature in an urban setting and 
encourage wellbeing for all users

3.1.17 Whilst the Four Waterside Site offers many opportunities there are some 
constraints which have been considered. St Peter’s Way sits to the northern 
boundary, it is a main road into and out of the town and experiences heavy 

7



traffic flow. This creates noise pollution which will need to be managed 
effectively. 

3.1.16 A sewer runs underneath the Four Waterside Site this represents a significant 
constraint as it cannot be built upon and is protected by a wide easement. This 
creates a no build area which segregates the site across the north east and 
south west axis, as shown in image 2.

Image 2.

3.1.17 The Four Waterside Site is identified on the Environment Agency’s (EA) 
records as a Flood Zone 3 area which benefits from flood defences. There is a 
current flood defence in place which runs along the riverside. 

3.1.18 This flood defences had an 8m easement for maintenance which after 
consultation with the EA they have reduced to 1m.

3.1.19 In terms of design of the buildings the EA stated that preferably, under croft 
car parking beneath the residential development, would help address the level 
of flood risk, particularly for any residential development within the south 
eastern corner where flood depths are greatest. This has been incorporated 
into the Masterplan proposal.

8



3.1.20 There are historical maps which demonstrate that the site has always been 
mixed use and has a strong industrial heritage. With previous uses across the 
site including gasometers, residential, retail and a tannery. 

3.1.21 The Four Waterside Site has been split into four plots as laid out in the 
Masterplan proposal: 

Plot 01: c.4650sqm of Office Space
Plot 02: c.3000sqm of Office Space/Hotel
Plot 03: c.5350spm of Office Space/Hotel
Plot 04: c.4300sqm of Residential 

3.1.22 Plot 01: Commercial Office Development – 10,074sqm over 6 floors 

 This will be a landmark building on the corner of St Peter’s Way and this 
prominent location will provide fantastic visibility for any occupier who takes 
space within this unit. 

 The site has 76 allocated car parking spaces available
 To celebrate the historical narrative of shoe making in Northampton, the 

architecture of this development could result in a unique façade design which 
is representative of the weaving process from the ‘aglet’ at roof level to the 
‘spindle’ at ground level.

3.1.23 Plot 02: Commercial Office Development – 5,085sqm over 3 floors

 This plot provides office accommodation split across three floors. Each floor 
can be split centrally to provide two smaller offices with a shared core serving 
both.

 There are approximately 142 car parking spaces, 70 across two levels within 
the footprint of the building and 72 are incorporated into the hard landscaping 
surrounding the building. 

 To celebrate the history of Northampton beginning as an Anglo-Saxon village, 
the architectural language of the office makes reference to this history and the 
materiality of the palisade which once surrounded the town. 

3.1.24 Plot 03: Hotel Development – 10,074sqm over 4 floors

 This plot provides opportunity for a hotel of over 4 floors including standard 
rooms, town house rooms, family rooms and accessible rooms. 

 The rooms are located towards the outside edge of the building allowing 
natural light to penetrate all the rooms. 

3.1.25 Plot 04: Residential 

 The residential component of this masterplan provides an opportunity to re-
establish the relationship the site has with the riverside and connect to the 
existing Foot Meadow to the south. 

 The residential blocks will provide a range of one and two bed apartments, 
taking advantage of the riverside setting.

3.1.25 Public Realm 

9



 The mixed-use development plots are connected through a dynamic and 
engaging public realm strategy which provides shared surfaces in-between the 
buildings to allow pedestrians to connect to the building frontages and infiltrate 
down through the site towards the riverside.

3.1.26 Avison Young undertook a first stage of delivery advice for the site during the 
development of the masterplan. This included assessing the local commercial, 
hotel and residential markets to inform the quantum’s of development being 
proposed.

3.1.27 Prior to the Masterplan proposal being commissioned during late 2018 and 
2019, Avison Young’s hotel team undertook an extensive commission to 
determine the demand and viability of a hotel in this location. The report 
concluded there may be demand for a hotel in this location subject to it being 
part of a larger mixed-use scheme and overcoming viability challenges.

3.1.28 Alongside the commercial overview, soft market testing was also undertaken 
with potential developers to frame the way that the Council approaches the 
market the site is ready to be marketed. 

3.1.29 Avison Young concurred with the uses in terms of them being both appropriate 
and deliverable (subject to the development appraisal being carried out and 
potential level of public sector intervention assessed) although they have 
highlighted the scale of the office proposed as a potential challenge.

3.1.30 Soft market testing concluded that there is interest from a number of parties 
who would be willing to deliver all uses in the Masterplan proposal rather than 
individual developments. A single developer approach may also benefit this 
site as public funding is likely to be required and this will allow one funding 
package to be negotiated.

3.1.31 The soft market testing also highlighted that a number of parties are aware of 
the Four Waterside Site history and lack of delivery to date hence when the 
Four Waterside Site is brought to market the Council need to ensure a fresh 
approach to delivery to ensure market confidence.

3.1.32 Initial Viability work was also undertaken on the potential uses. Avison Young 
noted that Office development would likely be a significant challenge and 
require a significant level of public funding. As noted in paragraph 3.1.27 
above a hotel would also require funding in order to be a viable proportion. 
Residential should cover its costs on the development and potentially add a 
small positive residual.

3.1.33 A full development appraisal is currently underway to inform the level of 
intervention required so that a plan for how to address this can be made.

3.1.34 A stage two delivery advice note will be subsequently completed once the 
development appraisal has been finalised, which is to consider the most 
appropriate procurement strategy to secure a development partner or partners 
for the site.

10



3.2 Issues

3.2.1 As noted under in paras 3.1.17 – 3.1.19 Flood Risk across the site has had to 
be carefully considered as part of the masterplan. This will need to be 
developed further as part of a future scheme submitted by a developer.

3.2.2 Potential further remediation has been identified through the environmental 
reports for the site. This will be considered once the viability has been 
assessed as to whether it is best to address this prior to taking the site to 
market or leaving this to a potential developer to resolve.

3.2.3 As noted in point 3.1.33 the Council are awaiting on a full development 
appraisal for the site. Until this has been completed the full extent of public 
sector intervention required across the site will not be clear.

3.3 Choices (Options)

3.3.1 To proceed with approving the feasibility study as described in this report.

3.3.2 To not proceed with approving the feasibility study. This will result in further 
design development work needing to be undertaken, costing additional money 
and delaying the development of Four Waterside. This option is not 
recommended. 

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1Policy

4.1.1 This masterplan will act as the preferred Council vision for the site.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.2.1 The development of the masterplan has been funded through the Enterprise 
Zone. 

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 It is noted herein that further information is to be considered by Cabinet in 
addition to the information attached to the appendices.   Cabinet must 
therefore as part of any decision that it makes in respect of the Masterplan 
Development proposal consider all of relevant information before a final 
determination is reached. 

4.3.2 The Council must ensure that Cabinet is provided with the fullest opportunity to 
consider all material considerations that would from part of approving a 
Masterplan Development proposal such as the one detailed in this report.   

4.3.2 By taking such appropriate steps the Council minimises the risk of a challenge 
by way of Judicial Review as the Council will be able to demonstrate that it 
has exercised its duty to act fairly in its decision-making process by ensuring 
that at each phase of the Masterplan Development proposal has been 
properly considered by Cabinet.

11



4.4 Equality and Health

4.4.1 The regeneration set out in this masterplan will have positive benefits to 
residents and the wider community. As projects are developed based on the 
Masterplans EIA’s will be carried out. 

4.5Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1 Northampton Forward has been consulted on the Masterplan, with the Board 
in support of the aspirations it sets out. 

4.5.2 Public consultation on a scheme will take place should a developer be sought, 
and planning application submitted.

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1 This project delivers under the corporate objective of ‘Shaping place and 
driving growth’, ‘Creating a thriving, vibrant town’ and ‘more homes, better 
homes’ by enabling the development of high-quality office, commercial and 
residential space which catalyses further regeneration. 

4.7 Environmental Implications (including climate change issues)

4.7.1 This project does not impact the climate change agenda.

4.8 Other Implications

4.8.1 N/A

5. Background Papers

5.1 N/A 

6. Appendices

6.1 Four Waterside Masterplan (2020)

7. Next Steps

7.1 Following the masterplan being approved, a full development appraisal for the 
site will be completed to understand the level of public sector intervention 
required. 

7.2 A strategy for how to fund this gap will be developed and a delivery route for 
how to take the site to development stage will be made. A Cabinet Report on 
both the appraisal and delivery advice setting out the most appropriate 
procurement strategy to secure a development partner or partners for the site 
will be brought back to Cabinet later in 2020.

Contact: Kevin Langley, Economy, Assets and Culture

12



Northampton Four Waterside 
Site Capacity and Feasibility Study

January 2020

13



14



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 1

CONTENTS

JANUARY 2020FOUR WATERSIDE SITE CAPACITY AND FEASIBILITY STUDY

Prepared by DG
Checked by SMC

 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
1.0 SITE LOCATION 
2.0 PREVIOUS PROPOSAL 
3.0 SITE ANALYSIS 
4.0 MASTERPLAN 
5.0 PLOT 01 
6.0 PLOT 02 
7.0 PLOT 03
8.0 PLOT 04 
9.0  PUBLIC REALM

Client and Collaborators

15



Four Waterside Feasibility Study2

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This study explores the potential for a mixed use development on a site, located 
adjacent to the River Nene in Northampton town centre.  The masterplan strategy 
responds to the character of the site by providing an urban edge of commercial 
uses which face the city and St Peter’s Way. The urban edge is softened by smaller 
residential units as the site extends towards the river and enhanced areas of public 
realm are implemented to promote visual and physical connections to the riverside 
and Foot Meadow beyond. 

The historic relevance of shoe making in Northampton is used as a design metaphor 
to inform the materiality of the scheme and architectural concept. The proposed 
masterplan for the site includes:

• Plot 01 – Commercial Office Development – 10,074 sqm
• Plot 02 – Commercial Office Development – 5,085 sqm
• Plot 03 - Hotel Development – 5,400 sqm
• Plot 04a – Residential - 1,976 sqm
• Plot 04b – Residential – 1,998 sqm
• Plot 04c – Residential - 3913 sqm

The study provides an overview of the potential of the site at feasibility stage 
however, as the study progresses beyond feasibility level, the flood risks highlighted 
as a constraint in this report must be formally assessed in order to understand any 
impact this might have on the future development zone.

ILLUSTRATION OF VIEW TOWARDS PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT FROM FOOT MEADOW

16



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 3

17



Four Waterside Feasibility Study4

1. SITE LOCATION

NORTHAMPTON TOWN CENTRE

The site is located in a historical part of Northampton just north of Foot Meadow, on the 
periphery of the urban centre. The site benefits from a range of existing amenities, the 
newly redeveloped Northampton Train Station is a 3 minute walk from the site and the 
current town centre is 5 minutes walk away. Vehicular access is achieved directly off St 
Peter’s Way which runs along the Northern and Eastern boundaries of the site. Due to 
the dominance of St. Peters Way as a primary vehicular route, pedestrian access into 
the site is currently limited to a series of under utilised  perimeter footpaths accessed 
via a pedestrian crossing directly adjacent to the train station.

The site’s historic significance and proximity to Northampton town centre, gives the 
site the potential to contribute  positively to the character of the area. The River Nene 
runs along the Southern site boundary which also presents an opportunity for a new 
Architecture that engages with this historic waterway and re-connects the site to Foot 
Meadow.

RIVER
NENE

TRAIN
STATION

FOOT 
MEADOW

URBAN 
CENTRE

SITE LOCATION

18



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 5

St Peters Way 

To
w

ce
st

er
 R

oa
d

St Peter’s Way

3 min walk H
or

se
 M

ar
ke

t
Site

c.20,000sqm 

Square

Northamptonshire
County Council

 SITE CONTEXT DIAGRAM

19



Four Waterside Feasibility Study6

2. PREVIOUS PROPOSALS

FOUR WATERSIDE NORTHAMPTON 

KIER

A feasibility study has already been undertaken on the site by Kier Construction who 
explored the potential to develop a masterplan for a series of landmark offices. The 
study proposed a new commercial complex named Four Waterside which provided 
a series of flexible office developments ‘designed to create a vibrant location for 
commerce delivering a place where your staff will want to work’.

The proposals aimed to deliver a high quality and sustainable development, creating 
jobs for local people as well as providing a highly desirable location for inward 
investment. The buildings were designed so that staff could operate in an environment 
which enabled them to communicate and collaborate effectively offering floorplates 
of approximately 20,000sqf. 

Whilst this scheme had been considered, it has not been developed by Kier therefore 
the site remains vacant.

3D MASSING VISUAL OF FOUR WATERSIDE BY KIER CONSTRUCTION

VISUAL OF OFFICE ENTRANCE AT FOUR WATERSIDE BY KIER CONSTRUCTION VISUAL OF OFFICE ENTRANCE AT FOUR WATERSIDE BY KIER CONSTRUCTION

MASTERPLAN OF FOUR WATERSIDE BY KIER CONSTRUCTION

20



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 7

MASTERPLAN DRAWING OF FOUR WATERSIDE BY KIER CONSTRUCTION

21



Four Waterside Feasibility Study8

SITE OPPORTUNITIES

The site offers many opportunities which are considered throughout the feasibility 
study.

The site is approximately 20,000sqm and has two corner plots to the east and west 
which have the potential to become commercial anchors. The first engages with the 
train station to the north west corner of the site and the second links to a primary 
road junction to the north east corner of the site. Due to their extensive commercial 
frontage, the two corner sites provide an appropriate setting for potential office 
developments.

The south west boundary frames the river and overlooks a large urban park which 
forms a green island in between the north and south banks of the river. There is an 
opportunity for the proposed scheme to link to the foot meadow both visually and 
physically to promote links to nature in an urban setting and encourage sustainable 
wellbeing for all users.

The site boasts a central urban location and benefits from a range of mixed use 
accommodation and local amenities within walking distance. St James Retail Park 
and Becket Retail Park are within walking distance to the west, the university of 
Northampton Innovation Centre neighbours the north west corner and the historic city 
area is a 4 minute walk to the east. There are many existing car parks adjacent to the 
site which could be used to support any development that occurs, should additional 
off site car parking be required. 

SITE CONSTRAINTS

Whilst the site offers many opportunities there are some constraints which should be 
considered. 

St Peter’s Way sits to the northern boundary, it is a main road into an out of the city 
and will experience heavy traffic flow. This will create noise pollution which will need 
to be managed effectively. 

A sewer runs underneath the site, this represents a significant constraint as it cannot 
be built upon and is protected by a wide easement. This creates a  no build area which 
segregates the site across the north east and south west axis.

3. SITE ANALYSIS

SITE ANALYSIS DRAWING

SITE AERIAL LOOKING NORTH

SITE AERIAL LOOKING SOUTH

SITE AERIAL LOOKING EAST

22



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 9

23



Four Waterside Feasibility Study10

SITE CHARACTERISTICS

VIEW FROM FOOT MEADOW INTO SITE

The site is located adjacent the River Nene and, as such, has an attractive, green 
riverside edge. The river provides a natural feature on the edge of the site however, 
the site itself has a hard industrial character similar to that of the wider city. 

Access to site is taken directly from the A4500 onto Tanner Street to the east or Green 
Street to the west. There is a residential estate just off Green Street which is accessed 
from Emerald Way. The estate includes a series of red brick, terraced units, 3 storeys 
high with pitched roofs. The units benefit from views across the river towards Foot 
Meadow beyond. A red brick wall runs along the north eastern extent of the site along 
the River Nene creating a physical and visual barrier segregating the site from the 
river. 

Foot Meadow is managed by Northampton Council and provides a large green open 
urban public park which is accessible via a footbridge a short walk away from the site. 
This provides a visual green buffer from the site.

VIEW FROM NORTH WEST CORNER OF SITE

VIEW LOOKING WEST TOWARDS INNOVATION CENTREEXISTING RESIDENTIAL WITH RELATIONSHIP TO RIVER NENE

SITE SECTION

24



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 11

VIEW FROM SITE TOWARDS FOOT MEADOW APPROACH TO EMERALD WAY FROM GREEN STREETVIEW LOOKING EAST TOWARDS NORTHAMPTON GASLIGHT CO.

SITE SECTION

25



Four Waterside Feasibility Study12

FLOOD RISKS

The site is identified on the Environment Agency’s records as a Flood Zone 3 area 
which benefits from flood defences. There is a current flood defence in place which 
runs along the riverside. 

The Environment Agency’s drawings also highlight significant flood storage areas 
upstream and downstream of the site which suggests that there is already a flood 
defence strategy in place for the city centre from which this site benefits. As the study 
progresses beyond feasibility level, the flood risks must be formally assessed in order 
to understand any impact this might have on the future development zone.

Avison Young have undertaken an assessment of the site’s flood risk and commenced 
discussion with the Environment Agency to agree how best to deal with any potential 
flooding.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY’S FLOOD MAPPING FOR SITE

26



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 13

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY’S FLOOD MAPPING FOR SITE

27



Four Waterside Feasibility Study14

There are historical maps which demonstrate that the site has always been mixed 
use and has a strong industrial heritage. The north eastern corner of the site was 
predominantly utilised for industrial use housing two large gasometers. Tanner 
Street was used to provide access to the terraced residential units surrounding 
the gasometers. Terraced residential units also fronted Green Street where they 
met further industrial buildings to the west of the site, close to the Malt House and 
Tannery. As such there is precedent for both small scale residential towards the 
centre of the site and large scale massing to the north eastern and north western 
corners.
 
Built on a shoe making industry, Northampton boasts many of the world’s finest 
shoemakers and has a proud heritage dating back almost 900 years. As such, there 
is an opportunity to celebrate the location of the previous shoe tannery on the site by 
seeking to represent some of the craftsmanship and materiality of the shoemaking 
throughout the design proposals. 

SITE HISTORY

TANNERY PLUNGE POOLS ST PETER’S WAY GASOMETER BARKERS SHOE FACTORY, NORTHAMPTON EARLY 20TH CENTURY

28



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 15

View: Northamptonshire XLV.9 (Hardingstone; Northampton) - Ordnance Survey 25 inch England and Wales, 1841-1952
https://maps.nls.uk/view/114479753

View: Northamptonshire XLV.9 (Hardingstone; Northampton) - Ordnance Survey 25 inch England and Wales, 1841-1952
https://maps.nls.uk/view/114479759

SITE PLAN C.1942

SITE PLAN C.1900

29



Four Waterside Feasibility Study16

4. MASTERPLAN

SITE STRATEGY DIAGRAMS

The series of diagrams adjacent illustrate the conceptual design approach to the 
masterplan of the site which provides a strategic framework for the development. 

SITE CONTEXT

The site benefits from a series of character areas. The urban edge to the north faces 
the hard infrastructure and dense urban grain of the city. Consequently, the site 
has an urban quality to the north and a softer riverside quality to the south which 
overlooks the river and historic park of the Foot Meadow.

STEP ONE 

The first strategy seeks to better connect the site to the existing historic park over 
the river. The masterplan will endeavour to provide this relationship by establishing  
visual  and physical connections towards the river which are strategically placed to 
celebrate key views. 

STEP TWO 

The second strategy builds on this approach as the massing of the proposed 
residential units are used as an urban design tool to frame the visual and physical 
connections. The housing units are arranged around the key views identified and in 
doing this, the massing of the residential units is broken down into a more appropriate 
scale as users progress towards the riverside edge.

STEP THREE 

The third strategy complements the newly established residential riverside frontage 
by introducing a new walking loop which connects the proposed development to 
the existing Foot Meadow allowing both sites to naturally integrate into one holistic 
development.

STEP FOUR

The fourth strategy aims to better connect the urban edge of the site to the north with 
the riverside setting by establishing a new vista across the centre of the site from the 
roadside. This provides a focal point for the development to allow for an active and 
engaging central public realm which thoroughly celebrates the riverside.

STEP FIVE

The fifth strategy aims to anchor the two corners of the development by introducing 
two commercial nodes at either side of the site, one which faces to the train station to 
the west and another which looks towards the city centre to the east.

CONCEPT

The overall strategy is a combination of these steps and provides a range of uses 
which are strategically placed to respond to the urban context to the north and 
celebrate the riverside context and Foot Meadow to the south. 

AERIAL C.2018

SITE CONTEXT STEP ONE

STEP TWO STEP THREE

STEP FOUR STEP FIVE

30



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 17

CONCEPT DIAGRAM

31



Four Waterside Feasibility Study18

MASSING & SITE PLAN

The site is split into four plots which address the opportunities and constraints 
discussed in the previous sections of this study. Overall, the strategy for 
accommodation is to provide an urban edge of commercial uses which face the city 
along St Peter’s Road and soften these building towards the river by introducing small 
scale residential accommodation that relates to the urban park to the south.  

The masterplan takes precedent from the historical urban grain, the two corner 
junctions once utilised for large industrial buildings to the North East and North West 
are developed to accommodate large scale commercial developments. 

The large north western plot provides c.5350sqm usable area for either a landmark 
office or hotel, which would take advantage of the extensive commercial frontage 
onto the busy road. Similarly, the north east corner plot provides c.4650sqm of area, 
a large office is proposed to take full advantage of the corner plot which is highly 
visible on approach from all surrounding roads. Another office or hotel development 
is proposed in-between the large commercial plots, this completes the urban edge 
to the roadside and creates an acoustic buffer between the road and the proposed 
residential plot which lies adjacent the River Nene. 

A spine road runs through the centre of the site to provide access to both the 
commercial buildings of the urban edge and the softer residential buildings which 
sit adjacent the riverside. The residential units are much smaller in scale and benefit 
from visual connections across the river towards the foot meadow beyond, providing 
an urban oasis in the heart of Northampton. 

SITE PLAN & ASSOCIATED PLOTS

32



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 19

SITE MASSING VISUAL

33



Four Waterside Feasibility Study20

PLOT 01

PLOT 02

PLOT 03

PLOT 04

BLOCK 04A

BLOCK 04B

BLOCK 04C

SITE PLAN & ASSOCIATED PLOTS

87 CAR PARKING 
SPACES

15 GROUND FLOOR CAR 
PARKING SPACES

34



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 21

PLOT 01

PLOT 02

PLOT 03

PLOT 04

BLOCK 04A

BLOCK 04B

BLOCK 04C

142 GROUND FLOOR 
CAR PARKING SPACES

16 GROUND FLOOR CAR 
PARKING SPACES

23 GROUND FLOOR CAR 
PARKING SPACES

76 TOTAL CAR 
PARKING SPACES

35



Four Waterside Feasibility Study22

5. PLOT 01

COMMERCIAL OFFICE DEVELOPMENT

Plot 01 benefits from an expansive corner site, the site is viewed on arrival from 
multiple roads that come to a junction located at the eastern perimeter. This 
prominent location will provide fantastic visibility for any occupier who takes space 
within this unit. 

The site is close to the town centre with 76 allocated car parking spaces available on 
site and convenient access to off-site public parking in various locations throughout 
the town centre. St Peter’s Way Car Park, 12 Gregory Street Car Park, Commercial 
Street Car Park, Sol Northampton Car Park, Doddridge Street Car Park, Chalk Lane 
Car Park and Northampton Station Car Park are all within walking distance from the 
site. Public transport is also readily accessible, the train station is just a 3 minute walk 
and there are various busses available from bus stops located along St Peters way and 
the surrounding roads. The prominent corner site provides the opportunity to develop 
a new landmark for the town which is representative of Northampton’s heritage and 
prosperity as a thriving community. 

The proposed office plot provides 10,074sqm/105,000sqf over 6 floors with a central 
core. The floor plates are designed to accommodate a range of occupancies and 
provide a flexible workplace which is readily adaptable to suit the requirements of 
most potential tenants. Furthermore, the floor plates can be split into a number of 
separate workplaces to allow for multi- occupancy on each floor. Each workplace 
is accessed directly from the central core creating an agile, adaptable and future 
proof office environment which can accommodate the spatial requirements of small, 
medium and large corporations.

ARCHITECTURAL LANGUAGE

Drawing on the historical narrative of shoe making in Northampton, the architecture 
seeks to  celebrate the  historic process of shoemaking to give the office building an 
exclusive aesthetic responding to it’s context. This could result in a unique facade 
design which is representative of the weaving process from the ‘aglet’ at roof level 
to the ‘spindle’ at ground floor level, this has created an intriguing design solution in 
which the heritage of the place.

OFFICE FLOORS

OFFICE AREA PER FLOOR  
TOTAL : 1280 SQM / 6 FLOORS

TOTAL AREA : 7680SQM

MEETING ZONES

ZONE PER FLOOR  
TOTAL :204SQM / 6 FLOORS

TOTAL AREA : 1224 SQM

CIRCULATION

AREA PER FLOOR 
TOTAL : 195SQM / 6 FLOORS

TOTAL AREA : 1170SQM

GROSS BUILDING AREA

10,074 SQM
10,5000SQF

76 CAR PARKING SPACES

OFFICE AREA SCHEDULE

TYPICAL OFFICE FLOOR PLAN

PLOT 02

PLOT 01

PLOT 04

PLOT 03

PLOT 04A
PLOT 04B PLOT 04C

FOOT MEADOW

KEY PLAN PLOT 01

36



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 23

5. SPINDLE

4. THREADS OF LINEN

3. FORMING MOMENT

2. LACE

1. AGLET

PROPOSED OFFICE ELEVATION NORTHAMPTON SHOE FACTORY

1

2

3

4

5

WOVEN ELEVATION CONCEPT

SPINDLE 

37



Four Waterside Feasibility Study24

6. PLOT 02

TYPICAL OFFICE FLOOR PLAN

COMMERCIAL OFFICE DEVELOPMENT

Plot 02 provides 5,085sqm / 54,700sqf of office accommodation split across 3 floors. 
Each floor can be split centrally to provide two smaller offices with a shared core 
serving both. There are approximately 142 car parking spaces; 70 across two levels 
within the footprint of the building and 72 are incorporated into the hard landscaping 
surrounding the building, although it is anticipated that off-site parking or public 
transport will also be used. 

ARCHITECTURAL LANGUAGE

Northampton began as an Anglo-Saxon village. The boundary of a historic palisade 
fortfication was discovered on site which marked the Anglo-Saxon village named 
Burh which ran through part of the site. As such, the architectural language of the 
office makes reference to this history and the materiality of the palisade which once 
surrounded the town. The vertical, timber structures are referenced through the 
design of the façade creating an interesting rhythm across the extent of the office 
development which gives the proposed building a relevant and contextual historical 
narrative.

OFFICE FLOORS

OFFICE AREA PER FLOOR  
TOTAL : 1460SQM / 2 FLOORS
                  810SQM/ 1 FLOOR

CAFE AREA - 3RD FLOOR
TOTAL: 475SQM
TOTAL AREA : 4,205 SQM

MEETING ZONES

ZONE PER FLOOR  
TOTAL : 130SQM / 2 FLOORS
                  80SQM / 1 FLOOR

TOTAL AREA : 340 SQM

CIRCULATION

AREA PER FLOOR 
TOTAL : 180SQM / 3 FLOORS

TOTAL AREA : 540 SQM

GROSS BUILDING AREA

5,085SQM
51000SQF

142 CAR PARKING SPACES

OFFICE AREA SCHEDULE

PLOT 02

PLOT 01

PLOT 04

PLOT 03

PLOT 04A
PLOT 04B PLOT 04C

FOOT MEADOW

ANGLO SAXON PALISADE FORTIFICATION
KEY PLAN PLOT 02

TYPICAL CAR PARK FLOOR PLAN

38



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 25

NEW OFFICE ELEVATION

39



Four Waterside Feasibility Study26

7. PLOT 03

/ Level 04

PLOT 03 PLAN

HOTEL DEVELOPMENT

Plot 03 provides a hotel of 10,074sqm/ 105,000sqf over 4 floors including standard 
rooms, town house rooms, family rooms and accessible rooms. 87 car parking 
spaces are provided for guests. The rooms are located towards the outside edge 
of the building allowing natural light to penetrate the rooms, all circulation takes 
place along the inside edge facing towards a generous external courtyard space. The 
footprint of the development responds to the site constraints associated with the 
sewer easement and site boundary.

PLOT 02

PLOT 01

PLOT 04

PLOT 03

PLOT 04A
PLOT 04B PLOT 04C

FOOT MEADOW

KEY PLAN PLOT 03

40



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 27

CORE

AREA PER FLOOR 
TOTAL : 65QM / 4 FLOORS

TOTAL AREA : 260SQM

TOTAL BUILDING AREA

5,400 SQM
58,127SQF

87 CAR PARKING SPACES

HOTEL AREA SCHEDULE

STANDARD ROOM

ROOMS  PER FLOOR  : 22
TOTAL ROOMS : 88 / 4 FLOORS

ROOM AREA : 28SQM
AREA PER FLOOR : 616SQM

TOTAL AREA : 2464SQM

FAMILY ROOM

ROOMS  PER FLOOR  : 7
TOTAL ROOMS : 28 / 4 FLOORS

ROOM AREA : 33SQM
AREA PER FLOOR : 231SQM

TOTAL AREA : 924SQM

TOWN HOUSE ROOM

ROOMS  PER FLOOR  : 1
TOTAL ROOMS : 4 / 4 FLOORS

ROOM AREA : 52SQM
AREA PER FLOOR : 52SQM

TOTAL AREA : 208SQM

ACCESSIBLE ROOM

ROOMS  PER FLOOR  : 2
TOTAL ROOMS : 8 / 4 FLOORS

ROOM AREA : 33SQM
AREA PER FLOOR : 66SQM

TOTAL AREA : 264SQM

CIRCULATION

TOTAL : 1280SQM

TASIGO HOTEL, GAD ARCHITECTURE

TASIGO HOTEL, GAD ARCHITECTURE

41



Four Waterside Feasibility Study28

8. PLOT 04 - BLOCK 04A & 04B

PROPOSED APARTMENT LAYOUT - 
BLOCK 04B

BLOCK 04B AREA SCHEDULE

PLOT 02

PLOT 01

PLOT 04

PLOT 03

PLOT 04A
PLOT 04B PLOT 04C

FOOT MEADOW

BLOCK 04A

Block 04A provides an array of 1 & 2 bed apartments over 4 floors. The block is linear 
in form to take advantage of the riverside setting, respond to the site constraints and 
to allow natural light to penetrate the north and south elevations of each apartment.

BLOCK 04B

Similarly, Block 04B provides an array of 2 bed apartments and 2 bed duplex 
apartments over 4 floors. The block also takes on a linear form. It is located in 
between Blocks 04A & 04C to allow for a pedestrian route in between the blocks to 
provide access to the riverside.

CAR PARKING 

There are 62 car parking spaces allocated to the residential developments across 
blocks 04A, 04B and 04C. Car parking, access and storage are located at ground floor 
within the footprint of each residential building to create a flood resilient ground floor 
construction - further work with the  Environmental Agency may enable alternative 
ground floor uses to be considered.

KEY PLAN PLOT 04 A&B

16 CAR PARKING SPACES 

21500SQF

42



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 29

PROPOSED DUPLEX AXO

PROPOSED APARTMENT LAYOUT  - 
BLOCK 04A

BLOCK 04A AREA SCHEDULE

21270SQF

15 CAR PARKING SPACES 

43



Four Waterside Feasibility Study30

8. PLOT 04 - BLOCK 04C

PLOT 02

PLOT 01

PLOT 04

PLOT 03

PLOT 04A
PLOT 04B PLOT 04C

FOOT MEADOW

BLOCK 04C

Block 04C is deeper in plan that Blocks 04A & 04B, vertical circulation is taken from a 
central core and access to each unit is provided by elevated walkways situated around 
a seven storey atrium. The block provides a series of 1 bed and 2 bed apartments over 
7 storeys however the top two storeys are cut back in order to respond to Block 04B 
which sits at only two storeys.

CAR PARKING 

There are 54 car parking spaces allocated to the residential developments across 
blocks 04A, 04B and 04C. Car parking, access and storage are located at ground floor 
within the footprint of each residential building to create a flood resilient ground floor 
construction - further work with the  Environmental Agency may enable alternative 
ground floor uses to be considered.

KEY PLAN PLOT 4C

BLOCK 04B AREA SCHEDULE

PROPOSED APARTMENT LAYOUT  - 
BLOCK 04A

42120 SQF

23 CAR PARKING SPACES 

44



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 31

PROPOSED ONE BED APARTMENT AXOPROPOSED TWO BED APARTMENT AXO

45



Four Waterside Feasibility Study32

RESIDENTIAL MASSING & CONTEXT

The residential component of the masterplan provides a fantastic opportunity to 
re-establish the relationship the site has with the riverside and connect to the existing 
Foot Meadow to the south. The scheme proposes low rise residential accommodation 
adjacent the river edge to provide an appropriate scale of development which does 
not overpower the riverside context and celebrates vistas both to and from the Foot 
Meadow. 

The image on the opposite page demonstrates how the scale of the residential 
accommodation complements the riverside context, this is supported by an enhanced 
landscaping strategy which extends the Foot Meadow from the south, bringing it into 
the site creating an urban oasis. In doing this, the urban edge towards the north is 
softened as users infiltrate through the site towards the residential units and vistas 
towards green public realm, Foot Meadow and river are opened up for all to enjoy.

RESIDENTIAL MASSING PRECEDENTS

An architectural precedent which celebrates the old Northampton Warehouses which 
previously occupied the site could be used to provide an appropriate architectural  
response to the setting. The warehouses were typical of the area and those that 
remain are a symbol of the historic thriving industry. The precedents adopt a pitched 
roof scape set along an active street scape which breaks the massing of terraced 
housing down to an appropriate scale whilst acknowledging the historic relevance of 
the area.

8. PLOT 04

KEY PLAN PLOT 04

HISTORIC FACTORY ON SITE

MEWS KENT, MORRIS+COMPANY BRENTFORD LOCK, MORRIS+COMPANY

BRENTFORD LOCK, MORRIS+COMPANY

46



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 33

VISUALISATION TAKEN FROM THE FOOT MEADOW LOOKING TOWARDS THE SITE

47



Four Waterside Feasibility Study34

RESIDENTIAL RIVERSIDE CONTEXT 

The adjacent  image shows the relationship between Foot Meadow, River Nene and 
the residential units. The residential units create an active and engaging riverfront 
context, the River Nene can be enjoyed simply visually or for recreational purposes 
as a river walk or for water based activities. The units provide a mix of two storey and 
three storey housing to create a visual relief between the blocks creating a village like 
vernacular which sits comfortably within the generous green landscape.

 RESIDENTIAL MATERIALITY PRECEDENTS

The architecture of the old warehouses, built predominantly in brick to house the 
shoe making industries, could be used to inform the materiality of the architecture. A 
textured red brick is selected, reminiscent of the tones of the leather tannery which 
once inhabited the site may be appropriate. The traditional brick details, which were 
used to define openings and thresholds, have been re-interpreted in a contemporary 
style to provide visual relief to the elevations facing the riverside.

8. PLOT 04 “By 1831 a third of all the men 

living in Northampton were 

shoemakers.”

GASLIGHT CO. BRICKWORK

GASOMETER  BRICKWORK ON SITE

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL ELEVATION 

PLOT 02

PLOT 01

PLOT 04

PLOT 03

PLOT 04A
PLOT 04B PLOT 04C

FOOT MEADOW

KEY PLAN PLOT 04

48



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 35

VISUALISATION TAKEN FROM THE RIVER LOOKING TOWARDS THE SITE

49



Four Waterside Feasibility Study36

9. PUBLIC REALM

The mixed use development plots are seamlessly connected through a dynamic 
and engaging public realm strategy which provides shared surfaces in-between the 
buildings to allow pedestrians to connect to the building frontages and infiltrate down 
through the site towards the riverside. 

There are two key nodes either side of Plot 02 which join onto the main boulevard, 
this is the primary route across the site which runs along the same east/west axis as 
the river. The route provides a spacious, tree lined boulevard which complements 
the commercial blocks and buffers the commercial use from the residential blocks 
adjacent. A landscape strategy is integrated alongside the residential accommodation 
to the river edge, creating a seamless connection to the riverside which allows the site 
to become an extension of Foot Meadow beyond. 

PLOT 02

PLOT 01

PLOT 04

PLOT 03

PLOT 04A
PLOT 04B PLOT 04C

FOOT MEADOW

KEY PLAN PUBLIC REALM CONCEPT

VISUALISATION SHOWING TREE-LINED EAST/WEST BOULEVARD

50



Four Waterside Feasibility Study 37

51



FaulknerBrowns LLP
Dobson House
Northumbrian Way
Killingworth
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE12 6QW

T  +44 (0)191 268 3007

info@faulknerbrowns.co.uk
faulknerbrowns.co.uk

FaulknerBrowns LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in England and Wales. Registered number OC386918.
Registered office: Dobson House, Northumbrian Way, Killingworth, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE12 6QW

52



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

CABINET REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC / PRIVATE

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Service Area:

Accountable Cabinet Member: 

Ward(s)

5th February 2020

YES

YES

YES

Planning

Cllr James Hill

All

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to consider a review of policies in the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) in 
accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). A schedule setting out 
the review of policies is attached at Appendix 1 to this report.

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that this Council endorses the review of policies in the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy as set out in Appendix 1 to this report.

Report Title West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy – Review of 
Policies

Appendices

53

Agenda Item 8



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1 It is now just over 5 years since West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 
was adopted on 14th December 2014 having been found sound when 
assessed against the 2012 National Planning Policy Framework. 

3.1.2 Regulation 10A Town and Country (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012 (as amended) requires local planning authorities to review a local 
development document within the following time periods:  

(a) In respect of a local plan, the review must be completed every five years, 
starting from the date of the adoption of the local plan, in accordance with 
section 23 of the Act (adoption of local development documents)

3.2 Issues

3.2.1 The purpose of the 5-year review is to establish if a review in part or whole of 
the plan is required. The partner Councils have already committed to a review 
of the plan through the preparation of the West Northamptonshire Strategic 
Plan (WNSP). Officers from the partner Councils and the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit (JPU) have undertaken a review of 
policies in the WNJCS in compliance with the regulation, however, given the 
commitment to prepare a new Strategic Plan, it takes a proportionate, light 
touch approach. 

3.2.2 The schedule attached at Appendix 1 presents a review of policies in the 
WNJCS against the current National Planning Policy Framework (February 
2019). There is a common misconception that just because a plan is 5 years 
old it is automatically out of date. However, the schedule shows that many of 
the policies in the WNJCS remain up to date and consistent with the NPPF 
and on this basis they should continue to be given full weight as part of the 
development plan for the purposes of decision making. 

3.2.3 The review helpfully identifies those instances where certain policies will 
require updating or modification, for example through the preparation of the 
new Strategic Plan. There are also a number of cases where existing policies 
in the WNJCS are being effectively superseded through the inclusion of more 
up to date policies in the Part 2 Local Plans being prepared by the partner 
Councils. 

3.2.4 One key issue to highlight is the status of the housing requirements set out in 
Policy S3 of the WNJCS. The Strategic Plan will clearly review the scale of 
housing provision using the national methodology to calculate Local Housing 
Need (LHN) as a starting point over extended plan period either up to 2041 or 
2050. In the interim however the review of Policy S3 concludes the housing 
requirement figures in the policy should continue to be used for the purposes 
of calculating 5-year land supply. This is because the residual housing 
requirement in the WNJCS is over 6700 dwellings higher than the LHN figure 
and, having regard to the NPPF objective of boosting housing supply, this is 

54



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

considered to provide a sufficient level of contingency during the transition 
period to the new plan.

3.2.5 At its meeting of 14th January, the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning and 
Infrastructure Board recommended that the partner Councils endorse the 
schedule attached at Appendix A.

3.2.6 Because the Board is advisory, the schedule must be endorsed by each of the 
four constituent authorities.  Subject to this endorsement, the review of 
WNJCS policies will then be published on the websites of each of the partner 
Councils and the JPU.  

3.3Choices (Options)

3.3.1 Option 1 – Cabinet endorses the review of the WNJCS as set out in Appendix 
1 to this report.  Provided it is endorsed by all of the other partner Councils, 
the Councils and the JPU will then be able to publish the schedule on their 
respective websites.  Since the WNJCS forms part of the statutory 
development plan for Northampton, this will help to inform developers, agents 
and landowners when they submit planning applications.

3.3.2 Option 2 - Cabinet does not endorse the review of the WNJCS as set out in 
Appendix 1 to this report.  If this happens, the schedule will not be published 
on the Council’s website and it will not be clear to the development industry or 
the public that such a review has taken place.  This will leave the Councils 
open to allegations that the WNJCS has not been reviewed in accordance with 
Government regulations and that its policies need not be complied with.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 The review of the Joint Core Strategy shows that most of its policies remain up 
to date and should continue to be taken into account in the consideration of 
planning applications.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.2.1 There are no financial implications, risk or non-financial resource implications 
arising from this proposal.  

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 The review of the Joint Core Strategy shows that most of its policies remain up 
to date and should continue to be taken into account in the consideration of 
planning applications.

4.4 Equality and Health

55



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

4.4.1 Since this proposal does not alter the policies in the Joint Core Strategy, no 
further assessment is necessary.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1 This proposal was considered first by the West Northamptonshire Strategic 
Programme Board, which is a group of officers from the constituent authorities 
and the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit.  Subsequently, it was 
considered by this Council’s Corporate Management Board.

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1 The Joint Core Strategy forms part of the statutory development plan for 
Northampton.  As such its policies help to deliver priority outcomes set out in 
the Council’s Corporate Plan including delivering a stronger economy and 
more resilient communities.  The review of those policies will ensure that these 
polices can continue to be taken into account when considering planning 
applications.

4.7 Environmental Implications (including climate change issues)

4.7.1 The Joint Core Strategy contains a number of policies that address 
environmental and climate change issues.  The review of those policies will 
ensure that those policies that are up to date can continue to be taken into 
account when considering planning applications.

4.8 Other Implications

4.7.1 None.

5. Background Papers

5.1 Appendix 1 – West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) 
– Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 
– December 2019.

6. Next Steps

6.1 If the review of policies in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy as 
set out in Appendix 1 to this report is endorsed by this Council, 
Northamptonshire County Council, Daventry District Council and South 
Northamptonshire Council, it will be posted on each of their websites and the 
West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit’s website. 

Peter Baguley

56



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

Director of Planning and Sustainability
01604 837776

57



This page is intentionally left blank



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (WNJCS) was adopted on 14th December 2014.  The plan was found to be sound when assessed against the 
2012 National Planning Policy Framework.  

Regulation 10A Town and Country (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) requires local planning authorities to review a local 
development document within the following time periods: 

(a) In respect of a local plan, the review must be completed every five years, starting from the date of the adoption of the local plan, in accordance with 
section 23 of the Act (adoption of local development documents);

The purpose of the 5 year review is to establish if a review in part or whole of the plan is required.  The three local authorities have already committed to a 
review of the plan, with what will be called the West Northamptonshire Strategic Plan (WNSP).  They have agreed a Local Development Scheme and have 
agreed methods of working together.  This review has been undertaken to comply with the regulation, however, given the commitment to review, it takes a 
proportionate, light touch approach. 

All three Councils are currently progressing part two plans to supplement the WNJCS as follows:

Settlements and Countryside Local Plan (Part 2) for Daventry District 2011-2029 – The Part 2 Plan was submitted for examination in December 2018. 
Examination hearings were held in June 2019. Following the hearings Daventry District Council agreed main modifications to the Plan and these were 
published for consultation between 23rd September and 4th November. Representations to the modifications have been submitted to the Local Plan 
Inspector and his report is awaited. Adoption is anticipated in February 2020.

Northampton Local Plan Part 2 – The proposed submission draft Plan (Regulation 19) was published for public consultation between 1 May and 14 June 
2019. Next steps are being reviewed in the light of the representations that have been received.

South Northamptonshire Local Plan Part 2 – The Part 2 Local Plan was submitted for examination in January 2019. Examination hearings were held in June 
2019. Following the hearings South Northamptonshire Council agreed main modifications to the Plan and these were published for consultation between 
7th October and 18th November. Representations to the modifications have been submitted to the Local Plan Inspector and his report is awaited. Adoption is 
anticipated in Spring 2020.

The schedule below presents of review of the policies in the WNJCS against the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019)

59



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

Pg Ref Policy Title Conformity with National Policy Recommendation
23 SA Presumption in favour of Sustainable Development At the time of the plan’s submission 

there was a requirement to include such 
a policy in a local plan; this no longer 
applies. 

The presumption included in the 2019 
NPPF is slightly differently worded, but 
overall the aims are the same.   

This policy will either need to be 
reworded in the WNSP to correspond 
with paragraph 11 of the 2019 NPPF or, 
as it is no longer necessary, deleted.  In 
the interim it would still have some 
weight, but paragraph 11 of the NPPF 
would take precedence. 

27 S1 The Distribution of Development Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF, in particular, achieving 
sustainable development (para 8), 
setting out an overall strategy for the 
pattern, scale and quality of 
development (para 20), and building a 
strong and competitive economy (para 
80 - 82). 
Policy is consistent with paragraphs 117 
– 121 regarding making effective use of 
land, including, use of brownfield land. 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

29 S2 Hierarchy of Centres Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF, in particular, achieving 
sustainable development (para 8), 
setting out an overall strategy for the 
pattern, scale and quality of 
development (para 20), and defining a 
network and hierarchy of centres (para 
85). 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

35 S3 Scale and Distribution of Housing Development Housing Need:
The plan makes provision for 46,620 
dwellings in the plan period 2011 to 
2029. Paragraph 60 of the NPPF states 
that the housing requirement should 
now be assessed using the national 

The WNSP will review the scale of 
housing provision using the national 
methodology to calculate Local Housing 
Need as a starting point.

60



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

methodology unless exceptional 
circumstances justify an alternative 
approach. Using the national 
methodology to calculate the housing 
requirement over the remainder of the 
plan period would identify a requirement 
for 22,210 which is 6774 dwellings or 
23% less than the residual JCS 
requirement. Thus the plan substantially 
exceeds the LHN and as such is 
consistent with the NPPF objective of 
boosting housing supply (para 59). See 
calculation at table 1 below. 
Distribution:
This is dealt with at policy S1 above.

In the interim, and having regard to the 
NPPF objective of boosting housing 
supply, it is considered that the housing 
provision set out in the JCS, which is 
30% higher than LHN, provides some 
contingency during the transition period 
to the new plan.

For this reason policy S3 should continue 
to be used for the purposes of calculating 
5 year land supply.

36 S4 Northampton related Development Area S4 further develops the overall strategy, 
which itself is consistent with the NPPF.  
The level of housing in S4 repeats that 
within S3. 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

37 S5 Sustainable Urban Extensions Urban extensions are allocated at 
Northampton (partly in DDC and SNC 
districts), Daventry, Brackley and 
Towcester. These urban extensions are 
at various stages in the planning and 
delivery process. 

The monitoring arrangements at 
appendix 6 of the WNJCS includes a 

The allocated SUEs listed in Policy S5 
remain appropriate and consistent with 
the NPPF.  

61



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

trigger if delivery is +/-25% on a rolling 3 
year basis.  The monitoring position as 
at 31.03.19 indicates that there has 
been a shortfall in delivery over the last 
three years, which is just above 25%. 
The partner Councils have commenced 
preparation of the West 
Northamptonshire Strategic Plan which 
will review and where appropriate 
replace strategic policies in the JCS. 
Delivery will be a key consideration for 
the new Strategic Plan.

Whilst delivery of the allocated SUEs 
has been slower than anticipated, the 
allocations remain appropriate. A 
detailed commentary on the progress of 
each site is presented later in the 
schedule.
  
As noted above the allocations and 
other commitments more than meet the 
Local Housing Need requirement and 
there is no need to review them. 

41 S6 Monitoring and Review The NPPF says little on monitoring.  At 
paragraph 33 it sets out the need for a 
five year review, which this document 
fulfils.  

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

43 S7 Provision of Jobs Monitoring of jobs provision in the AMR 
demonstrates that the policy 
requirement is being met.  The 
evidence base for this policy is now 
some years old and in need of a 
refresh. 

Evidence base needs to be refreshed, 
alongside housing evidence as part of 
the preparation of the WNSP.

46 S8 Distribution of Jobs Policy is in general conformity with the The policy is up to date and consistent 

62



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

NPPF, in particular, achieving 
sustainable development (para 8), 
setting out an overall strategy for the 
pattern, scale and quality of 
development (para 20), and building a 
strong and competitive economy (para 
80 - 82).   The policy is supplemented 
by the emerging part 2 plans.

with the NPPF.  

52 S9 Distribution of Retail Development The policy is in accordance with the 
sequential approach in section 7 of the 
NPPF

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

56 S10 Sustainable Development Principles Contributes to the environmental 
objective in paragraph 8 and the design 
polices in section 12.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

58 S11 Low Carbon and Renewable Energy Contributes to the environmental 
objective in paragraph 8.  Reference to 
achieving Code for Sustainable homes 
4 is not consistent with current 
Government advice regarding energy 
standards.

Whilst much of the policy is consistent 
with the NPPF the approach to energy 
standards will need to be reviewed in the 
light of current Government advice. 

66 C1 Changing Behaviour and Achieving Modal Shift Consistent with section 9 The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

67 C2 New Developments Consistent with section 9.  The policy 
makes reference to modal shift target 
which are set out in the 
Northamptonshire Transport Plan 2012. 
In the light of the age of this target it is 
expected that the modal shift target will 
need to be reviewed as part of the work 
on the WNSP.

The policy is consistent with the NPPF, 
but the modal shift target will need to be 
reviewed as part of the WNSP.  

70 C3 Strategic Connections Consistent with section 9. The content 
of the policy remains valid but it is 
recognised that the policy will need to 
be reviewed, including the consideration 
of additional strategic connections, as 

The policy is consistent with the NPPF, 
but the need for strategic connections will 
be reviewed as part of the WNSP.  

63



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

part of the WNSP
72 C4 Connecting Urban Areas Consistent with section 9. The content 

of the policy remains valid but it is 
recognised that connections between 
urban areas will need to be reviewed as 
part of the WNSP

The policy is consistent with the NPPF, 
but connections between urban areas will 
be reviewed as part of the WNSP.  

74 C5 Enhancing Local and Neighbourhood Connections Consistent with section 9 The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

75 C6 High Speed Rail 2 The policy provides appropriate 
guidance for the local authorities as key 
consultees influencing the detailed 
design and construction of HS2. It is 
recognised that the Government has 
launched an independent review of the 
HS2 project

Pending the outcome of the review of 
HS2, the policy is up to date and 
consistent with the NPPF.     

80 RC1 Delivering Community Regeneration Consistent with Section 8.  The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

85 RC2 Community Needs Consistent with Sections 8 and 12.  In 
terms of open space standards, the 
policy refers to using the latest evidence 
base, therefore this policy remains up to 
date even when the evidence is 
refreshed.  

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

87 E1 Existing Employment Areas Broadly consistent with section 6 and 
section 11.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

88 E2 New Office Floorspace Broadly consistent with the sequential 
approach for main town centre uses set 
out in section 7.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

89 E3 Technology Realm Helps to deliver a strong competitive 
economy in accordance with section 6.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

90 E4 Daventry International Rail Freight Terminal Helps to deliver a strong competitive 
economy in accordance with section 6.
A DCO has been granted for a rail 
freight terminal in the context of this 
policy.  

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

64



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

93 E5 Silverstone Circuit Helps to deliver a strong competitive 
economy in accordance with section 6.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

94 E6 Education, Skills and Training Consistent with section 8. The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

95 E7 Tourism, Visitor and Cultural Industries Consistent with section 6. The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

98 E8 Northampton Junction 16 Strategic Employment Site Helps to deliver a strong competitive 
economy in accordance with section 6.
This site is currently being developed.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

102 H1 Housing density and Mix and type of Dwellings H1 sets out the strategic approach to 
ensuring an appropriate mix of housing 
types, sizes and tenures is achieved, 
consistent with paragraphs 61 and 62.  
These policies are being developed 
further in the part 2 plans.

Policy is in line with para 117 regarding 
making effective use of land.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

104 H2 Affordable Housing Policy sets out the requirements for 
affordable housing in accordance with 
section 5. It is considered that the 
proportions of affordable housing 
specified in the policy remain valid, 
although these will need to be reviewed 
as part of an updated housing needs 
assessment for the WNSP. The site 
size thresholds for Daventry and South 
Northamptonshire Districts are lower 
than that which is specified in 
paragraph 63.

SNC Local Plan (Part 2) sets a 
threshold of 10 dwellings (Policy LH8). 
This is currently being examined with 
adoption anticipated for Spring 2020.

The proportions of affordable housing 
specified in the policy remain valid, but 
the provisions of the policy will be 
reviewed as part of the WNSP.

The site size threshold for South 
Northamptonshire is likely to be 
superseded by Policy LH8 of the SNC 
Local Plan (Part 2) when this is adopted.

65



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

106 H3 Rural Exception Sites Policy is in general conformity with para 
77, which states that policies should 
support opportunities to bring forward 
rural exceptions sites. 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

107 H4 Sustainable Housing Whilst the principle of the Policy is in 
general conformity with paragraphs 59, 
60 and 61 which refer to the need to 
provide housing to meet particular 
needs, the reference to Lifetime Homes 
is no longer consistent with Government 
advice on accessibility standards

The reference to Lifetime Homes is now 
out of date and the approach to 
accessibility will need to be reconsidered 
in the light of Government guidance 
following the Housing Standards Review.

It is anticipated that this policy will be 
effectively superseded by more up to 
date policies on accessibility standards in 
the Part 2 Local Plans when they are 
adopted.  

107 H5 Managing the existing Housing Stock Supports the effective use of land and 
buildings in meeting the need for homes 
as referenced in paragraphs 117 and 
118(d).

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

108 H6 Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Showpeople More recent evidence has been 
commissioned for West 
Northamptonshire which makes an 
assessment of need that takes account 
of revised government guidance 
published in 2015.

DDC and SNC have included policies in 
their Part 2 plans, taking account of the 
revised government guidance, which 
will supersede this policy. 

Policy is now out of date, and will need to 
be reviewed in the WNSP, based on the 
more recent evidence. 

The policy will be superseded by policies 
in Part 2 Local Plans when they are 
adopted.

114 BN1 Green Infrastructure Connections The provision of green infrastructure 
helps to achieve active, healthy, well 
designed and inclusive places 
consistent with paragraph 91, 92, 127 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

66



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

and 171.
116 BN2 Biodiversity Policy helps to maintain and enhance 

biodiversity consistent with section 15.
The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

117 BN3 Woodland Enhancement and Creation The enhancement and management of 
woodlands is consistent with 
paragraph174. 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

119 BN4 Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits Special Protection 
Area.

The policy provides specific protection 
for the Upper Nene Valley Gravel Pits 
SPA and RAMSAR site and is 
considered to be consistent with 
paragraph 174. Updated policy 
guidance is expected to be included in 
Part 2 Local Plans for South 
Northamptonshire and Northampton. 
These policies will partially supersede 
aspects of Policy BN4 when they are 
adopted.

The policy is consistent with the NPPF 
and should be read in conjunction with 
policies in Part 2 Local Plans when these 
are adopted.

121 BN5 The Historic Environment and Landscape The policy seeks to secure the 
protection and enhancement of heritage 
assets. It is consistent with paragraphs 
20(d), 170(a) and section 16.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

124 BN6 Weedon Depot The policy provides guidance for the 
reuse of the former Royal Ordnance 
Depot at Weedon. The site is a 
significant heritage asset and the 
provisions of the policy are consistent 
with section 16 of the NPPF.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

128 BN7A Water Supply, quality and Wastewater Infrastructure The principles of the policy i.e. to 
ensure adequate water supply, improve 
water quality and efficiency are 
consistent with the NPPF, in particular 
paragraphs 20(b), 149 and 170(e). The 
policy includes a reference to the Code 
for Sustainable Homes which is no 
longer supported by national policy. 

The policy is consistent with the 
principles of the NPPF and should be 
read in conjunction with policies in Part 2 
Local Plans when these are adopted.

67



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

This aspect of the policy will be 
superseded by policies in Part 2 Local 
Plans which are expected to the 
optional higher water efficiency 
standard of 110 litres per person per 
day.

129 BN7 Flood Risk The policy is consistent with the 
approach to planning and flood risk set 
out in section 14, paragraphs 155-165.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

131 BN8 The River Nene Strategic River corridor The policy seeks to protect and 
enhance the natural and cultural 
environment of the River Nene Corridor 
and is consistent with the NPPF, 
particularly sections 15 and 16.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

132 BN9 Planning for Pollution Control Consistent with paragraph 170 (e) and 
(f)

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

133 BN10 Ground Instability Consistent with paragraphs 118(c) and 
170(f).

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

136 INF1 Approach to Infrastructure Delivery Consistent with paragraph 34. The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

139 INF2 Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements Consistent with paragraph 34. The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.   

146 N1 The Regeneration of Northampton Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF. Policy continues to perform a 
useful function in delivering the 
requirements of the NPPF, including 
housing delivery and addressing local 
issues.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

148 N2 Northampton Central Area The principle of focussing major office, 
leisure, and cultural development in the 
central area of Northampton is 
consistent with section 7 of the NPPF. 
The policy includes floorspace figures 
for shopping and office development 
which are set out in the Northampton 

The policy is consistent with the 
principles of the NPPF but the floorspace 
figures are out of date and will be 
supersede by the Northampton Local 
Plan Part 2 when it is adopted.

68



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

Central Area Action Plan (CAAP). 
These figures are out of date and are 
expected to be superseded by the 
Northampton Part 2 Local Plan which 
will replace the CAAP.

151 N3 Northampton North SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

Permission has been granted for 2,000 
of the 3,500 homes, partly in outline and 
partly full. Discussions are underway 
regarding the remaining 1,500. 
Development on the site is underway, 
however, delivery is behind that 
expected in the housing trajectory.

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

153 N4 Northampton West SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

Permission has been granted for 52 
dwellings on part of the allocation, and 
these are currently being constructed. 
Two outline applications have been 

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

69



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

received covering the bulk of the 
allocation. Both applications have a 
Committee resolution to grant 
permission subject to the completion of 
a S106 agreement.

155 N5 Northampton South SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59. 

Outline permission has been granted for 
1000 homes and an approval of 
reserved matters has been granted for 
the first phase of 349 dwellings. 

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

157 N6 Northampton South of Brackmills This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

The majority of the site has the benefit 
of outline permission for up to 1000 
dwellings. Reserved matters for a first 
phase of 385 dwellings has been 
approved. On the remainder of the site 
an outline application for 525 dwellings 
has been approved subject to the 

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

70



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

completion of a Section 106 agreement.

159 N7 Northampton Kings Heath SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

That part of the allocation in Daventry 
District has already been developed for 
197 dwellings.  The bulk of the 
allocation is in Northampton Borough 
and an outline application has been 
supported by Committee subject to the 
completion of a S106 agreement. 

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

161 N8 Northampton North of Whitehills SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

Most of the allocation has detailed 
planning permission and the reminder 
has outline. Part has already been 
developed, and part is under 
construction.  It is expected that all of 
the allocation will be developed in the 
plan period. 

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

163 N9 Northampton Upton Park SUE This allocation helps to meet the The allocation remains valid and supports 

71



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

The site has the benefit of outline 
permission and a reserved matters 
application for the whole site has been 
approved. Site works have commenced.

the objectives of the NPPF.  

165 N9A Northampton Norwood Farm/Upton Lodge SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Northampton, 
noting that the level of housing 
requirement would be less if using the 
national methodology. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

Two outline applications have been 
submitted which cover the majority of 
the site. Both applications have a 
committee resolution to grant 
permission subject to a S106 
agreement.

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

167 N10 Convenience Shopping Needs Outside Northampton 
Town Centre

The policy seeks to ensure that an 
appropriate level of convenience 
shopping is provided at new local 
centres with the allocated SUEs. The 
approach is consistent with the NPPF.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

169 N11 Supporting Areas of Community Regeneration Consistent with Section 8.  The policy is up to date and consistent 

72



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

with the NPPF.  
172 N12 Northampton Transport Network Improvements Policy promotes sustainable transport 

improvements in line with section 9 of 
the NPPF. 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

176 D1 The Regeneration of Daventry Town Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF. Policy continues to perform a 
useful function in delivering the 
requirements of the NPPF, including 
housing delivery and addressing local 
issues.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

178 D2 Daventry Town Centre Policy is in general conformity with 
Section 7 of the NPPF. Policy continues 
to perform a useful function
in delivering the requirements of the 
NPPF and addressing local
issues,

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

180 D3 Daventry North East SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for Daventry. It 
supports the governments objective of 
boosting the supply of housing and 
therefore conforms with para 59.  

An application for the entire allocation is 
expected early in 2020.

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

181 D4 Supporting Areas of Community Regeneration: 
Southbrook

Policy is in general conformity with para 
93 of the NPPF. It continues to perform 
a useful function in delivering the 
requirements of the NPPF and 
addressing local issues.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

183 D5 Daventry’s Transport Network Improvements Policy promotes sustainable transport 
improvements in line with section 9 of 
the NPPF.  This policy is being 
developed further in the Settlements 
and Countryside Local Plan. 

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

73



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

186 T1 Spatial Strategy for Towcester Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF. Policy continues to perform a 
useful function in delivering the 
requirements of the NPPF, including 
housing delivery and addressing local 
issues.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

187 T2 The Town Centre and Moat Lane Regeneration Area Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF. Policy continues to perform a 
useful function in delivering the 
requirements of the NPPF, including 
housing delivery and addressing local 
issues. Substantial progress has been 
made on regeneration of the area 
including new office, housing and retail 
development and the preservation and 
enhancement of heritage assets.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

190 T3 Towcester South SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for South 
Northamptonshire. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

Two outline planning permissions have 
been granted which cover the whole 
site. A number of reserved matter 
applications have been approved. 
Construction has commenced on site 
and development is being delivered at 
pace.

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

191 T4 Transport Improvements for Towcester Policy promotes sustainable transport 
improvements in line with section 9 of 
the NPPF.  

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

193 T5 Towcester Racecourse Policy is in general conformity with the The policy is consistent with the NPPF, 

74



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

NPPF. Notwithstanding the recent 
closure of the racecourse the policy 
provides appropriate guidance for the 
future use of the site. Some updating is 
required to reflect current 
circumstances

but some updating is required to reflect 
the current situation following closure of 
the racecourse.

This is also being addressed through the 
SNC Local Plan (Part 2).

197 B1 Spatial Strategy for Brackley Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF. Policy continues to perform a 
useful function in delivering the 
requirements of the NPPF, including 
housing delivery and addressing local 
issues.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

199 B2 Brackley East SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for South 
Northamptonshire. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  It also supports 
economic development on land to the 
north of Turweston Road and the 
provision of community facilities such as 
a health centre.

An outline application and reserved 
matters application have been approved 
for residential development to the south 
of Turweston Road.

The land north of Turweston Road has 
the benefit of planning permission for a 
mixed use development including 
employment, retail, health facilities, 
visitor accommodation and a 
restaurant/bar. Construction of this part 
of the site is well advanced.

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

75



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

201 B3 Brackley North SUE This allocation helps to meet the 
housing requirement for South 
Northamptonshire. It supports the 
governments objective of boosting the 
supply of housing and therefore 
conforms with para 59.  

The site has been developed in three 
parts i.e. Radstone Fields, Sawmills and 
Foxhills. Much of the site has already 
been developed, and part is under 
construction.  It is expected that all of 
the allocation will be developed well 
within the plan period.

The allocation remains valid and supports 
the objectives of the NPPF.  

202 B4 Transport Improvements for Brackley Policy promotes sustainable transport 
improvements in line with section 9 of 
the NPPF.  

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

207 R1 Spatial Strategy for the Rural Areas Policy is in general conformity with the 
NPPF and is being taken forward by 
SNC and DDC in part 2 plans

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

210 R2 Rural Economy The policy is consistent with the 
objective of supporting a prosperous 
rural economy as set out in the NPPF 
paragraphs 83 and 84.

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

211 R3 A Transport Strategy for the Rural Areas Policy promotes sustainable transport 
improvements in line with section 9 of 
the NPPF.  

The policy is up to date and consistent 
with the NPPF.  

Table 1 – comparison of housing requirement

76



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

A
WNJCS

B
LOCAL HOUSING NEEDS 

Requirement for plan period 2011-29 42,620 Annual requirement* NBC   1,333
DDC      372
SNC       516
           2,221

Actual delivery 2011-19 13,636
Remaining requirement 28,984 Requirement 2019-2029 (2,221 x10)         22,210

*See table 2 below 

Table 2 – Calculation of Local Housing Need using the national methodology

 HH in 2019 HH in 2029
Ave 
growth/ 

Affordability 
ratio

Adjustment 
Factor Annual LHN

Capped 
figure

77



West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Local Plan (Part 1) (WNJCS) – Review of Policies in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) –December 2019

annum

Daventry 33918 36593 267.5 10.27 1.39 372  
Northampton 98464 109345 1088.1 7.6 1.22 1333  
South 
Northants 37947 41636 368.9 10.49 1.40 518 516
West 
Northants 170329 187574 1724.5   2223 2221

78



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

CABINET REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC / PRIVATE

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Service Area:

Accountable Cabinet Member: 

Ward(s)

5th February 2020

YES

YES

YES

Planning

Councillor James Hill

All

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinet’s approval for the revised 
Memorandum of Co-operation between this Council, Daventry District Council, 
Northamptonshire County Council and South Northamptonshire Council to 
provide and support a Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board for West 
Northamptonshire.

2. Recommendations

2.1    It is recommended that Cabinet approve and re-sign the revised Memorandum 
of   Co-operation, which is attached at Appendix 1 to this report, with the proviso 
that it will be reviewed once the Shadow Council for West Northamptonshire is 
in place.

Report Title Revision of the Memorandum of Co-operation for the 
West Northamptonshire Joint Planning and 
Infrastructure Board

Appendices

79

Agenda Item 9



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

3. Issues and Choices

3.1 Report Background

3.1.1 This Council, Daventry District Council, Northamptonshire County Council and 
South Northamptonshire Council agreed a Memorandum of Cooperation to 
provide and support a Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board for West 
Northamptonshire in 2018.  The memorandum sets out a framework for co-
operation between the partner councils, as local planning authorities, with 
respect to strategic planning and development issues that raise cross borough 
/ district council boundary matters affecting them.

3.1.2 An audit of the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit (JPU) was recently 
undertaken by Daventry District Council’s internal audit team, which noted that 
the Memorandum effectively replaced the previous legal agreement between 
the partner Councils, but lacked the same level of detail, particularly in respect 
of issues such as finance and procurement. The auditors recommended that 
the Memorandum be updated to include those aspects of the Finance and 
Procurement Protocol from the former legal agreement that are integral to the 
operation of the partnership and the administration of the JPU. 

3.1.3 In line with the audit recommendation, the Memorandum has been updated by 
the inclusion of a new Appendix B which includes the key elements of the 
Finance and Procurement protocol from the former legal agreement. These 
include arrangements for budget setting, monitoring and procurement 
procedures.  

3.1.4 At its meeting of 14th January, the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning and 
Infrastructure Board recommended that the partner Councils approve and re-
sign the Memorandum, subject to the proviso that it will be reviewed once the 
Shadow Council for West Northamptonshire is in place.  At that meeting, it 
was also agreed that the Memorandum be amended to make provision for 
substitute members to attend meetings of the Board.

3.2 Issues

3.2.1 The updated Memorandum attached at Appendix 1 does not differ significantly 
from the existing Memorandum, but the greater level of detail set out in the 
update will ensure certainty in procedures for the way the Board and the Joint 
Planning Unit operate, particularly as regards finance and procurement.  It has 
been amended in paragraph 4 of the Terms of Reference to incorporate 
arrangements for substitute members to attend meetings of the board.

3.2.2 Because the Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board is advisory, the updated 
Memorandum must be agreed by each of the four constituent authorities 
before it can be signed and brought into effect.

3.3Choices (Options)

80



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

3.3.1 Option 1 - the updated Memorandum of Co-operation is agreed and re-
signed.  Provided the updated Memorandum is also agreed by 
Northamptonshire County Council, Daventry District Council and South 
Northamptonshire Council, this will ensure that the business of the Joint 
Planning and Infrastructure Board is carried out in accordance with audit 
recommendations, that there is clarity as to how it and the Joint Planning Unit 
work in terms of finance and procurement and that there is formal provision for 
substitutes attend meetings of the Board. 

3.3.2 Option 2 - the updated Memorandum of Co-operation is not agreed and re-
signed.  If there was a dispute between the partners relating to the running of 
the board or the Joint Planning Unit, it would be difficult to resolve because 
there would not be sufficiently detailed arrangements in the Memorandum.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 There are no direct policy implications arising from this proposal.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.2.1 There are no financial implications, risk or no-financial resource implications 
arising from this proposal.  The main advantage of the proposal is that, by 
making the Memorandum more detailed and clearer, it reduces the risks 
associated with any dispute between the partner councils.

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 There are no direct legal implications.  The proposed update to the 
memorandum puts in place clearer and more detailed arrangements between 
the partner councils.

4.4 Equality and Health

4.4.1 The proposed update to the Memorandum does not have any direct policy 
implications, so an equality impact assessment is not required.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

4.5.1 This proposal was considered first by the West Northamptonshire Strategic 
Planning Board, which is a group of officers from the constituent authorities 
and the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit.  Subsequently, it was 
considered by this Council’s Corporate Management Board

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

81



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/28/01/20

4.6.1 The proposed update to the Memorandum does not relate directly to the 
strategic priorities in the Corporate Plan.  However, by planning strategically, 
the work of the Joint Planning Unit should help to deliver a stronger economy 
and more resilient communities. 

4.7 Environmental Implications (including climate change issues)

4.7.1 The proposed update to the Memorandum does not relate directly to 
the Climate Emergency.  However, by planning strategically, the work of the Joint 
Planning Unit should help to address climate change.  

4.8 Other Implications

4.7.1 None

5. Background Papers

Appendix 1 – Updated Memorandum of Co-operation for the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board

6. Next Steps

6.1 If the updated Memorandum of Co-operation is agreed by this Council, 
Northamptonshire County Council, Daventry District Council and South 
Northamptonshire Council.  It can be signed be each Council and come into 
effect. 

Peter Baguley
Director of Planning and Sustainability

01604 838921

82



Memorandum of Cooperation for the Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board

WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE JOINT PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD

MEMORANDUM OF COOPERATION

A MEMORANDUM OF COOPERATION BETWEEN THE LOCAL PLANNING 
AUTHORITIES OF NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL, NORTHAMPTON 
BOROUGH COUNCIL, DAVENTRY DISTRICT COUNCIL AND SOUTH 
NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNCIL  TO PROVIDE AND SUPPORT A JOINT PLANNING 
AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD FOR WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE.

INTRODUCTION

1. This memorandum establishes a framework for cooperation between the above 
named local planning authorities with respect to strategic planning and development 
issues that raise cross borough/district council boundary matters affecting them. 
The establishment of a Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board is central to this 
framework.

PARTIES TO THE MEMORANDUM

2. This Memorandum is signed by the following local planning authorities (LPAs):

 Daventry District Council (DDC)
 Northampton Borough Council (NBC)
 Northamptonshire County Council (NCC)
 South Northamptonshire Council (SNC)

LIMITATIONS

3. The signatories recognise that there will not always be full agreement with respect 
to all of the strategic planning issues in respect of which they seek to cooperate. For 
the avoidance of doubt this Memorandum is not intended to be legally binding and 
will not restrict the discretion of any of the local planning authorities in the exercise 
of any of their statutory powers and duties.

ESTABLISHMENT OF THE PLANNING AND INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD

4. This Memorandum supports the establishment of a Joint Planning and 
Infrastructure Board, which will be supported by an Officer level Programme Board, 
and professional and technical support provided by a Joint Planning Unit. Detailed 
Terms of Reference for the Board are set out in Appendix A.

OBJECTIVES

5. This Memorandum confirms the intention of the signatory councils via their relevant 
officers and the Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board to achieve the following 
broad objectives:

 To secure a broad but consistent approach to strategic planning and development 
across the West Northamptonshire area;

 To identify and manage spatial planning issues that impact on more than one local 
planning area within the West Northamptonshire area;

83



Memorandum of Cooperation for the Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board

 To ensure that the local plans and other development policies prepared by each 
local planning authority are, where appropriate, informed by the views of other local 
planning authorities across the West Northamptonshire area; 

 To support better coordination of development and investment strategies across the 
area including the delivery of strategic infrastructure; and

 To ensure that the Duty to Cooperate is actively addressed.

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ISSUES

6. The Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board will:
 Develop and implement a programme for jointly addressing strategic planning and 

development issues;
 Monitor the preparation of local plans across the area and the implementation of 

adopted planning policies through the preparation of a joint Authorities’ Monitoring 
Report

 Support the local planning authorities in coordinating and recording all relevant 
activity relating to the Duty to Cooperate; 

 Monitoring, review and update Infrastructure Delivery Plans;
 Prepare, maintain and update a Strategic Spatial Priorities document to support the 

development of a coherent and comprehensive development strategy across the 
West Northamptonshire area; and 

 Maintain liaison with the Local Enterprise Partnerships and support the 
implementation of agreed Strategic Economic Plans to achieve sustainable growth.

TIMESCALE AND REVIEW

7. The Memorandum will continue in effect until the signatories decide it should end. 
The signatories will review its effectiveness and whether any changes should be 
made at least every three years.

8. In the event that one or more of the signatories ceases to exist as a result of local 
government reorganisation the Board will automatically cease to exist and as 
appropriate a new Board created to reflect the new local government structure.

FUNDING ARRANGEMENTS

9. Funding for Joint Planning arrangements will continue to be provided on the basis 
of NBC 40%, DDC 30% and SNC 30%. The budget will be agreed each year at the 
Board. South Northamptonshire Council will be the accountable body.

10.Further details regarding finance and procurement are set out in the protocol 
attached at Appendix B.

84



Memorandum of Cooperation for the Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board

SIGNATURES:

Signed on behalf of Daventry District Council ….

Name Signature

Position

Date

Signed on behalf of Northampton Borough Council ….

Name Signature

Position

Date

Signed on behalf of South Northamptonshire Council ….

Name Signature

Position

Date

Signed on behalf of Northamptonshire County Council

Name Signature

Position

Date

85



Appendix A: Terms of Reference for the Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board

4

WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE JOINT PLANNING AND 
INFRASTRUCTURE BOARD

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. Area covered by the Board

Strategic Planning and Infrastructure issues covering more than one of the 
following local planning authority areas:
Daventry District Council
Northampton Borough Council
South Northamptonshire Council

 
2. Scope of the Board

 Identify and manage spatial planning issues that affect more than one 
local planning authority area;

 Support better coordination of development and investment strategies 
across the area including the delivery of strategic infrastructure; 

 Ensure that the Duty to Cooperate is actively addressed. 
 Development of a shared strategic evidence base, such as Housing and 

Economic Development Needs Assessment, to inform future Local 
Plans;

 A joint information and monitoring function including the production of a 
joint Authorities Monitoring Report;

 To support the local planning authorities in coordinating and recording 
all relevant activity relating to the Duty to Cooperate; and

 Ongoing monitoring, review and updating of Infrastructure Delivery 
Plans.

3. Status of the Board

The Board has no decision making powers and cannot bind any of the 
participating local planning authorities in any way.  Meetings will be held in 
public unless there are particular reasons which require a meeting or part of a 
meeting to be held in private.

4. Membership

The Board shall have representation from each of the partner Councils 
comprising three elected members from each of NBC, DDC and SNC. Where 
possible, these should include at least one person who is an elected Member 
of Northamptonshire County Council among those appointed by NBC, DDC 
and SNC. Where a member is unable to attend a meeting of the Board a 
substitute can be nominated to attend in their place.

5. Observers

86



Appendix A: Terms of Reference for the Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board

5

The Board may invite Members of other local authorities and organisations to 
attend as observers. In general, one observer from each local planning 
authority with a boundary with the area of the Board will be welcome to attend 
meetings.

6. Appointment of Members

Each LPA to appoint Members to the Board in accordance with their own 
constitution. Where possible, appointments should include the relevant 
Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Planning.

7. Meetings

Meetings will generally be held quarterly. The Chair may, and on request of at 
least two signatories shall, call an additional meeting to address any matter 
which requires urgent consideration.  The Chair may authorise the 
cancellation of a scheduled meeting if there is insufficient business to justify 
holding it.

8. Venue and Administration

The venue for meetings of the Board will rotate among DDC, NBC and SNC.

Administration of meetings will be provided by the signatory whose Member is 
currently the Chair. In the case of the meeting at which a new Chair is elected, 
administration will be the responsibility of the signatory whose Member was 
the Chair at the commencement of the meeting.

9. Chairmanship

The Chair will be elected by the Board on an annual basis, at the meeting of 
the Board first occurring after 1st May each year, and at other times if 
necessary. It is intended that the Chair will be an appointment rotating among 
the signatories.

10 Technical Support

Programme Board – Senior Officers with lead responsibility for planning from 
each LPA.

Strategic Planning Group – Planning Policy leads from each LPA

Infrastructure Delivery Group – Appropriate officers from each LPA plus key 
infrastructure providers.

Joint Planning Unit

87



Appendix B: Finance and Procurement Protocol

6

West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit – Finance and Procurement 
Protocol

1. This protocol sets out the approach agreed between the constituent 
local authority partners of the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning 
Unit (JPU), namely:
 Daventry District Council (DDC)
 Northampton Borough Council (NBC)
 Northamptonshire County Council (NCC); and 
 South Northamptonshire Council (SNC)

in relation to the financial and procurement arrangements that will 
apply.

Accountable Body

2. SNC is the designated accountable body for the JPU. Accordingly it will 
be the budget holder for the JPU and its Section 151 officer and 
monitoring officer will take the lead for these roles so far as they are 
relevant to the JPU.

3. This is however not to the exclusion of the equivalent officers in the 
other authorities, nor does it mean that the whole financial, legal and 
procedural burden of the JPU should be borne by SNC. Equivalent 
officers of the partner authorities agree to respond in a timely fashion to 
requests for comment and assistance from SNC’s officers and vice 
versa so that a truly partnership approach is taken and burdens arising 
from the JPU can be equitably shared.

4. SNC’s financial, procurement and constitutional procedures should 
apply where they are relevant to the business of the JPU and /or the 
WNJPIB

Budget Setting

5. For each financial year the provisional budget of the JPU will be 
prepared by the Principal Spatial Planner (PSP) (supported as required 
by a Finance Business Partner at SNC) and agreed by the Programme 
Board by no later than 31 October in the preceding financial year.

6. Each Partner Local Planning Authority (PLPA) will then take details of 
its pro rata contribution (as set in the Memorandum above) into its 
provisional budget through its own budget setting processes with a 
view to agreeing its contribution provisionally by no later than 31 
December in the preceding financial year.

7. The Section 151 officer of each PLPA will confirm the provisional 
position with the S151 officer of SNC by this date so that the 
provisionally agreed income contributions can be reflected in SNC’s 
draft budget proposals.

88



Appendix B: Finance and Procurement Protocol

7

8. Once budgets for the forthcoming year have been formally set by the 
PLPAs the S151 officer of each PLPA will inform the S151 officer of 
SNC. Ordinarily this will be by the end of the first week of March in the 
preceding financial year.

9. If a PLPA cannot agree the provisional budget or contribution or it 
emerges that a PLPA is likely to reduce the provisional contribution 
confirmed at the end of December then it must inform the S151 officer 
of SNC immediately, so that this can be reflected in the income 
budgets for the JPU unless and until another PLPA decides that it will 
increase its contribution. 

10.Such changes will be reported to the Programme Board is the S151 
officer of SNC, in consultation with the PSP (JPU) deems this 
appropriate.

Payment of Contributions

11.The S151 officer of SNC will ensure that all budgets relating to the JPU 
are input into SNC’s general ledger accounting system alongside all 
other service budgets.

12.All JPU budgets will be ring fenced for the use of the JPU only.

13.SNC will invoice each of the other PLPAs for its annual contribution by 
31 May in the relevant financial year and payment will be made by 
each of the PLPAs to SNC by 30 June in that year.

14.All contributions will be held in the same ring fenced budget at SNC. 
No interest on the balance held will accrue to the benefit of the JPU 
budget.

15.No virements out of the budget will be permitted for expenditure not 
related to the JPU.

Procurement

16.All works, goods and services for the JPU will be procured in 
accordance and compliance with SNC’s Financial and Contract 
Procedure rules. The procuring officer will be the PSP (JPU) when in 
post and, when the post is vacant, the Head of Planning at NBC.

17.All purchase orders for JPU related expenditure will be raised by SNC 
on its purchasing system.

Contracts

18.All formal contracts relating to works, goods and services provided to 
the JPU will be executed in to by SNC on behalf of all the PLPAS 

89



Appendix B: Finance and Procurement Protocol

8

provided that they are required to deliver the Local Development 
Scheme and can be funded from the approved budget.

Expenditure

19.All JPU related expenditure will be invoiced to SNC and defrayed from 
the JPU budget by SNC.

20.Any expenditure incurred by any of the PLPAs in a month should be 
recharged to SNC in a timely manner.

21.Expenditure should be sent, in the first instance, to the PSP (JPU) for 
authorisation.

22.All expenditure should be authorised by the PSP (JPU) or, in 
exceptional circumstances, by authorised accountancy staff at SNC.

Budget Monitoring

23.A budget monitoring report showing profiled and actual expenditure at 
sub code level to the Programme Board on a quarterly basis.

24.The PSP (JPU) will liaise with authorised accountancy staff at SNC in 
the preparation of these reports.

Underspend at Outturn

25. In the event that the JPU budget shows an underspend at the end of 
any financial year, and assuming all contributions by the PLPAs have 
been received, the underspend will be rolled forward into the following 
financial year to the extent necessary to defray committed expenditure 
from the financial year concerned. In the event that no such committed 
expenditure exists, or the underspend exceeds the committed 
expenditure, the underspend (or uncommitted balance thereof) shall be 
returned by SNC to the PLPAs in proportion to their contributions for 
the year in question. A PLPA can opt, on written notice to the S151 
officer at SNC, to use its proportion of any underspend to defray, in 
part, its contribution for the following financial year.

26.Requests for underspent budgets to be accrued forward should be 
approved by the Programme Board and the PSP (JPU) will inform the 
S151 officer at SNC accordingly.

Budget Management

27.The PSP (JPU) will be responsible for the day to day management of 
the JPU’s budget under the supervision of the Head of Planning at 
NBC and in liaison with the S151 officer at SNC and their staff.

Closure of Accounts

90



Appendix B: Finance and Procurement Protocol

9

28.The PSP (JPU) will liaise with and cooperate fully with the S151 Officer 
at SNC and their staff with regard to the closure of accounts at the end 
of each financial year.

Dispute Resolution

29. If there is a dispute between any of the PLPAs on any financial or 
governance related matter that cannot be resolved the S151 officer at 
SNC (for finance matters) or the monitoring officer at SNC (for 
governance issues) will raise the matter in dispute with their 
equivalents at all PLPAs.

30.Every practical attempt will be made to settle the dispute without the 
need for further escalation but if agreement cannot be reached then the 
issue will be referred to the Chief Executives ( or equivalent) of the 
PLPAs for resolution.

Statutory Returns and other requirements

31.Upon request and as required the PSP (JPU) and their staff will provide 
any information requested by SNC’s S151 Officer or Monitoring Officer 
required in order to:

 Fulfil their statutory duties
 Complete statutory returns
 Complete committee reports
 Complete other returns
 Respond to consultation
 Address inspection or assessment issues

32.The list above is not exhaustive, but is indicative of the type of 
information that may be needed.

33. Information should be provided within 5 working days or other 
timescale as specified by the requesting officer.

Reports

34.All reports to WNJPIB should be shared agreed with the relevant 
officers of all PLPAs so that reporting is transparent and open.

Monitoring of Arrangements

35.Programme Board will keep these arrangements under review and 
liaise as required with S151 and Monitoring Officers from the PLPAs

Partner Resource Provision

36.The following PLPAs will provide the following facilities:

91



Appendix B: Finance and Procurement Protocol

10

37.NBC – employment of JPU staff, provision of office accommodation 
and equipment.

38.SNC – accountable body responsibilities, accountancy systems, 
accountancy support, lead monitoring officer and lead S151 officer.

39.DDC – provision of internal audit services for planned annual internal 
audit of the JPU.

40.All of the above arrangements should be charged to the JPU in line 
with the section on expenditure.

Financial Support

41.All financial support to the JPU will be provided by SNC at the direction 
of the S151 officer.

42.Detailed financial support for the JPU will be provided a ‘Finance 
Business Partner’.

43.The S151 officer of SNC will oversee all financial arrangements for the 
JPU and will liaise with the PLPAs Section 151 officers as required.

Audit

44.The terms of reference for the planned annual audit will be decided by 
the S151 officer of DDC, consulting with fellow S151 officers as 
appropriate.

45.The audit report with assurance levels or recommendations will be 
reported to the Programme Board and where appropriate the Audit 
Committees of the PLPAs.

46. In addition to the planned annual audit the S151 officers of any of the 
PLPAs may instruct their own internal audit service to carry out 
additional internal audits if there is a need to so in order to discharge 
their statutory duties effectively. Any such audit would not be 
chargeable to the JPU.

92



CABINET REPORT

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC

Cabinet Meeting Date:

Key Decision:

Within Policy:

Policy Document:

Service Area:

Accountable Cabinet Member: 

Ward(s)

5th February 2020

YES

YES

NO

Economy, Assets and Culture

Cllr Tim Hadland, Regeneration and 
Enterprise
 
Rectory Farm

1. Purpose

1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval for the disposal, by auction, of Rectory 
Farmhouse, Olden Road, Rectory Farm, Northampton NN3 5DD

2. Recommendations

It is recommended that Cabinet:

2.1 Agree to Disposal of the Property, known as Rectory Farmhouse, by way of 
auction to achieve the best price reasonably obtainable for the area outlined in 
red on the plan at Annex 1;

2.2 Authorise the appointment of Auctioneers to dispose of the property in 
accordance with s.123 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

2.3 That authority be delegated to the Economic Growth and Regeneration 
Manager, in consultation with the Borough Secretary, Chief Finance Officer 
and Cabinet Member for Regeneration and Enterprise to finalise the terms of 
the disposal;

Report Title Rectory Farm Land Disposal

Appendices

1

93

Agenda Item 10



3. Issues and Choices

3.1. Report Background

3.1.1 The land and buildings at Rectory Farmhouse were transferred to the Council 
on 1st April 1985 as part of the overall land transfer from Northampton 
Development Corporation (NDC).

3.1.2 The original farm buildings of the Barn (The Community Centre) and the 
Farmhouse date back to 1843. 

3.1.3 After renovations the Barn opened as a Community Centre in February 1982, 
since its opening it has been used by community groups, clubs, and societies 
as a function and meeting room, and as a polling station. 

3.1.4 The farmhouse has had a variety of uses within recent years including being 
used as part of the Community Centre; a pre-school (now relocated into the 
Barn) and a Police out-station.  

3.1.5 Recently the Council have been in negotiation with The Billing Brook Academy 
around the sale of the site to be used as an Out-reach 6th Form Centre 
although this transfer was not able to be agreed.

3.1.6 It is currently in very poor condition with a large amount of capital expenditure 
needing to be invested in the property in order to bring it into a lettable state 
once again.

 
3.1.7 The building has been vacant since August 2018 with the Council responsible 

for the holding costs of the building which includes on-going security; Business 
Rates; utility bills as well as the management costs.

3.1.8 The site has a shared access with the adjacent Rectory Farm Community 
Centre which uses the Barn building. The access is shown as highlighted 
yellow on Appendix 1.

3.1.9 This site has previously used the area highlighted brown on Appendix 1 as a 
shared car park with the Community Centre. This area will solely be for the 
use of the Community Centre moving forwards with this site not having any 
rights over the car park area.

3.1.10 It is proposed to dispose of the Property by way or auction to reduce our 
current liabilities and to generate a capital receipt.

3.1.11 Selling at auction also allows the site to be marketed in a competitive bidding 
environment which allows any interested purchasers the opportunity to make 
the best bid that they are able. An auction is a transparent method of disposal 
if well-advertised, for any interested party to offer what they can afford and 
have certainty of outcome on the day.

3.1.12 This site has had an RICS registered market valuation to set the reserve price, 
the valuation is based on its existing use class, D1, but recognises that there 
may be a robust case presented to planning for residential use which may 
drive the sale price higher than the market valuation.

94



3.1.13 The auctioneer will ensure that the marketing is by way of direct marketing to 
those registered with them looking for sites, boards will go up on the site, 
brochures will be produced, and digital marketing will be on the commercial 
market web sites e.g. Rightmove.  This will happen for a minimum of two 
months. 

3.1.14 The professional estates team and external valuer therefore have taken into 
account the condition of the property, the audience we are trying to reach, and 
determined that the most appropriate market to achieve the highest sale price 
is the auction route.

3.1.15 The Council will be obligated to accept the highest bid made that is over the 
reserve price. 

3.1.16 A Red Book valuation for the site will be undertaken to establish its value. The 
Council will place a reserve price at auction at the Red Book Valuation level to 
ensure that the site is not sold unless it at least meets this value.

3.1.17 If Cabinet agrees with the recommendation in this report the site will be taken 
to Auction in May, this gives ample time for the site to be thoroughly marketed 
ahead of the auction taking place.

3.1.18 The method of disposal listed in 3.1.10 to 3.1.13 will satisfy the Council’s duty 
to obtain best consideration.

3.2 Issues

3.2.1 As a condition of the land transfer from NDC, there is a “Claw-back” clause, 
which lasts for 50 years from the transfer date, at a write-down of 2% per 
annum. This means that 30% of the capital receipt must be repaid back to 
Homes England.

3.2.2 The Energy Performance Certificate on this building is Grade G and therefore 
we are unable to let it out without carrying out a significant amount of work in 
order to upgrade it.

3.2.3 Given the state of the property an estimate of £200,000 would need to be 
spent on the property to bring it into the Council’s occupational use again.

3.3 Choices (Options)

3.3.1 Refurbish the property and lease it out as an investment property or as an    
Operational premise. This would need considerable capital outlay to bring the 
property into use for a modest return. This approach is not recommended.

3.3.2 Grant a long lease and get an in-coming tenant to refurbish the property at    
their cost, part in lieu of market rent. This approach would offer only modest 
returns as the use after refurbishment is likely not to be the optimal use of the 
site. This approach I not recommended.

3.3.3 Obtain planning consent and redevelop the site. This approach requires 
significant officer time to work with architects to develop an appropriate 
scheme, ensure that it complies and is granted planning permission and then 

95



manage the build out of the site. While offering potentially the highest returns 
to the Council for a small non-strategic site, such as this site, this approach is 
not recommended.

3.3.4 Dispose of the property with or without planning consent. A planning 
statement would be provided to bidders to demonstrate likely acceptable uses. 
This approach gives a quick return, with the Council able to get it into an 
Auction in May enabling a sale to be done quickly. It also involves only limited 
officer resource and given the scale of the site would be appropriate. This 
option is recommended.

3.3.5 Do nothing. The Council would continue to incur holding costs and would be 
preventing a development site form coming forwards. This approach is not 
recommended.

4. Implications (including financial implications)

4.1 Policy

4.1.1 The disposal of this site is in line with the corporate plan, directly delivering 
against the objective of spending your money wisely.

4.2 Resources and Risk

4.2.1 The sale of this site will reduce the holding costs to the Council while 
generating a capital receipt.

4.2.2 The costs of disposal will be limited by disposing of the property at auction as 
these can be passed onto a purchaser.  There is a £500 listing fee which 
covers advertising and brochures

4.2.3 A reserve price will be placed on the site at auction as set out in 3.1.13 to 
ensure that the site is not sold for below its Red Book Valuation.

4.3 Legal

4.3.1 As noted above s123 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that a 
principal council may dispose of land held by them in any manner that they 
wish, that being said under s123 (2) of the above Act prohibits (without the 
consent of the Secretary of State)   a Council from disposing of land under this 
provision (other than by way of a short tenancy), for a consideration less than 
the best that can be reasonably obtained. The Council will need to be satisfied   
that the proposed method of disposal (by auction) complies with the Council’s 
statutory duty to obtain best consideration

4.3.2 The Property as noted above, falls within the provisions of the Agreement 
dated 1st April 1985 which relates to the Transfer of Community related Assets 
at Northampton made between (1) Northampton Development Corporation 
and (2) Northampton Borough Council.   The Property noted above, on 
investigation, has been identified as forming part of Rectory Farm. 

96



4.3.3 Rectory Farm is described within the Agreement as “Building for non-
commercial social uses by voluntary groups, local residents’ groups and the 
Council” and has a category rating of II.  Under the provisions of the 
Agreement this means that Rectory Farm has been identified as a property 
where it is possible that a future change of use or redevelopment could result 
in an increase in its income generating potential. 

4.3.4 The Agreement specifies that for a period of 50 years from the date of the 
transfer (1st April 1985) that the Council is required to repay, until the expiry of 
that period of time, a pre- determined percentage of the assessed capital 
value of the Property on the occurrence of either (a) an actual change of use 
of the land or building to use other than specified within the Agreement or (b) 
there is a disposal of the land or building to another person. Either of these 
events will trigger the requirement for the Council to repay monies back to the 
statutory successor in title to Northampton Development Corporation now 
known as Homes England on the disposal of the Property. 

4.3.5 Pursuant to the provisions of the Agreement the appropriate percentage is 
100% in the first year after the transfer and thereafter 2 percentage points less 
for each year that elapses, so provision will need to be made for the 
repayment back to Homes England.  

4.3.6 The Council must ensure that if the sale by auction has been approved by 
Cabinet, that the information provided in the auction catalogue along with any 
plans or photographs must be factual accurate and complies with the 
Consumer Protection from Unfair Trading Regulations 2008. 

4.3.7 Legal Services will be required to prepare a Legal Pack, which will be required 
to be prepared advance of the auction so that potential buyers and their legal 
advisors can download the information and make an informed decision on 
whether to bid for the Property.   On completion in addition to the purchase 
price it is usual for the seller to require the buyer to reimburse the seller for the 
costs of searches included in the Legal Pack, notice fees and other out of 
pocket expenses. These sums, and any apportionments will be paid on 
completion. 

4.3.8 Unlike a standard transaction (where there is no binding contract until 
exchange) an auction contract is binding as soon as the hammer falls 
following the last successful bid. A Contract for Sale must be ready for      
exchange at the auction.

4.4 Equality and Health

4.4.1 There are no direct equality or health impacts resulting from this disposal.

4.4.2 By disposing of this site and allowing development to take place further 
residential, employment or community uses will be created benefiting the local 
community.

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External)

97



4.5.1 Community Spaces Northampton, who operate the Barn building adjacent to 
the Farmhouse, have been engaged and consulted on the proposed access 
and car parking arrangements ahead of this report.

4.5.2 Cllr James Hill, the local Member, has been consulted on the proposed 
disposal. 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes

4.6.1 This project directly delivers against the strategic priority of spending your 
money wisely within the Corporate Plan 2018-20 through making best use of 
corporate assets.

4.7 Other Implications

4.7.1 There are no such implications in this report.

5. Appendices

5.1 Redline Plan - Rectory Farmhouse site

6. Next Steps

6.1 Advertise the site and take to auction – March - May 2020

Kevin Langley
Economy, Assets and Culture

klangley@northampton.gov.uk

98

mailto:klangley@northampton.gov.uk


99



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	7 Four Waterside Masterplan 2020
	Four Waterside Masterplan

	8 Review of Policies set out in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy
	Cabinet 20200205 Appendix 1 - Review of WNJCS policies

	9 Revision of the Memorandum of Co-operation for the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning and Infrastructure Board
	Cabinet Final Appendix 1 20200205

	10 Rectory Farm Land Disposal
	Appendix 1 - Rectory Farmhouse Redline plan


